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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

Business Review

As of 31st March, 2016, the Group recorded a turnover of HK$2,226,463,000
(2015: HK$1,996,920,000), representing an increase of 11.5% as compared
with the same period last year. Included in the amount of turnover,
HKS$1,722,866,000 (2015: HK$1,448,848,000) was generated by cosmetics
business, representing an increase of 18.9% over the same period last year and
77.4% of the Group’s total turnover (2015: 72.6%). The turnover of fashion
business reached HK$503,597,000 (2015: HK$548,072,000), representing a
8.1% decrease as compared with the same period in the previous year. The
gross profit margin of the fashion business was 65.5%, representing a decrease
of 1.9 percentage points as compared with 67.4% for the same period last
year. The gross profit margin of the cosmetics business for the year was
34.6%, representing a decrease of 1 percentage point as compared with 35.6%
of the same period last year. The profit attributable to the shareholders for
the year was HK$58,933,000 (2015: HK$102,441,000), representing a decrease
of 42.5% over the same period last year. Such decline was mainly due to a
loss of HK$8,850,000 recorded from the fashion business segment for the
current year, which dropped HK$26,063,000 as compared with the profit
of HK$17,213,000 for the same period last year. The cosmetics business
recorded a segment profit of HK$94,019,000, representing a decrease of
14.9% as compared with the profit of HK$110,427,000 for the same period

last year.

Cosmetics Business

As of 31st March, 2016, the Group had 85 Colourmix stores (31st March
2015: 81 stores), of which 80 stores were located in Hong Kong, 4 stores
were in Macau, and 1 store in China. In August 2015, the Group established
another cosmetics store namely MORIMOR. As of 31st March, 2016, 6
MORIMOR stores have been set up in Hong Kong. MORIMOR cosmetics
stores offer high-quality trendy skin care and cosmetics products by
integrating global premier skin care beauty concepts, with diversified
products covering skin care, fragrance, make-up, hairdressing, body care and
cosmeceuticals and health food, of which the South Korea series of cosmetics
and beauty products are particularly popular among young customers. In
addition, professional beauty consultants offer appropriate personal services
and consultations on skin care for customers to enjoy the pleasant experience
of beauty. For the year under review, cosmetics retail business recorded a
turnover of HK$1,722,866,000 (2015: HK$1,448,848,000), representing an
increase of 18.9% and accounting for 77.4% of the Group’s total turnover.
The gross profit margin of the cosmetics business for the year was 34.6%,

representing a decrease of 1 percentage point as compared with 35.6% for
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the same period last year. The cosmetics business for the year recorded
a segment profit of HK$94,019,000, representing a decline of 14.9% as
compared with the profit of HK$110,427,000 for the same period last year
and a slightly increase of 1% was recorded in the turnover of comparable
stores, mainly attributable to a decline in consumption power in Hong Kong
and Macau regions. In the meantime, the depreciation of Renminbi (“RMB”)
also weakened the
consumption power
of tourists from
Mainland China,
resulting in a decrease
in number of trips. The
cosmetics business still
contributed substantial
profit to the Group’s
results.

Fashion Business

As of 31st March, 2016, the Group had altogether 131 fashion stores in
Hong Kong, Macau, Taiwan, Singapore and Mainland China (31st March,
2015: 165 stores). The main reason for the decrease in number of stores as
compared to the same period last year was that the Group has restructured
its retail network in overseas markets, mainly in Taiwan, during the year.
At the end of March 2016, the fashion retail operation in Taiwan has been
practically ceased its operation to alleviate the negative impact on the overall
results of fashion business in the future. During the year under review,
the retail market of Hong Kong was largely sluggish. Coupled with the
exceptionally warm weather during the winter season in 2015, which led to a
more intense competition in the fashion retail industry, it resulted in a decline
of 8.1% in the Group’s turnover of the fashion business. The gross profit
margin of the fashion business decreased by 1.9 percentage points to 65.5%
as compared with the same period last year. It was mainly attributable to
the more proactive sales promotion launched by the Group during the year,
coupled with the clearance sales before closure of the business in Taiwan
market. The fashion business recorded a segment loss of HK$8,850,000,
representing a decline of HK$26,063,000 as compared with the profit of
HK$17,213,000 for the same period last year.
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Fashion Business — Hong Kong and Macau Market

The fashion retail
business in Hong
Kong and Macau
accounted for 79.6%
of the Group’s
total turnover in
fashion business.
During the year
ended 31st March,
2016, the turnover
of Hong Kong
and Macau market reached HK$401,011,000 (2015: HK$421,022,000),
representing a decrease of 4.8% as compared with the same period last year.
The gross profit margin of Hong Kong and Macau regions dropped by 0.9
percentage point to 68.4% as compared with same period last year, and the
turnover of comparable stores for the year also recorded a decrease of 7.7%.
As of 31st March, 2016, the Group has a total of 82 stores established in
Hong Kong and Macau (31st March, 2015: 82 stores).

Fashion Business — Singapore Market

The retail business in Singapore recorded a turnover of HK$33,178,000
(2015: HK$42,262,000) for the year, representing a decrease of 21.5% as
compared with the same period last year. As of 31st March, 2016, the Group
had 8 stores in Singapore (31st March, 2015: 10 stores). Over the past few
years, the market environment in Singapore has been very challenging, and
the Group has closed down under-performing stores to alleviate the negative
impact on the overall results of the fashion business. For the year under
review, the turnover of comparable stores increased by 7.9% in local currency
terms as compared with the same period last year. However, the comparable
stores sales growth was weakened by weak exchange rates against Hong Kong
dollar during the year, which not only affected the sales figures denominated
in Hong Kong dollar, but also resulted in an increase of procurement costs. It

will remain as a tough market going forward.
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Fashion Business — China Market

-+ The turnover of the China market
reached HK$31,992,000 (2015:
HK$36,258,000), representing a
decrease of 11.8% as compared with
the same period last year, which
was mainly due to a decrease in the
number of stores. As of 31st March,
2016, the Group had a total of 38
Veeko and Wanko stores in China
(31st March, 2015: 47 stores).

Prospects

Owing to the weak consumption sentiment of local citizens and tourists, the
retail market in Hong Kong currently encounters a major challenge. Looking
forward, the challenges faced by the retail business are expected to continue,
while consumption sentiments will remain cautious. Despite the unfavorable
market conditions, the Group will continue to seek opportunities for growth.
Given the slowdown in the retail market and a decline in rental charges for
stores located in the prime districts, it is expected that rental cost pressure
will be reduced for stores with lease terms expiring in the coming year. With
the weakening trend of RMB, the fashion business can also benefit from the
reduction in production costs, somewhat relieving the situation as mentioned

above.
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Prospects (Continued)

The cosmetics business remains the Group’s main source of revenue.
However, the retail environment in Hong Kong is anticipated to remain
severe. With the strong Hong Kong dollar and the depreciation of some
Asian currencies including RMB enable more visitors and Hong Kong
residents travelling to other regions in Asia and thus reducing their spending
in Hong Kong. We expect this situation will continue for a certain period
of time, and will inevitably have negative impact on the retail business. As
a result of above factors, during the months of April and May in 2016, a
decline of approximately 20% was recorded in the turnover of comparable
stores for the cosmetic business; while during the period from Ist June 2016
to 19th June 2016, a decline of approximately 7% was recorded (Financial
Year 2015/16 1st Quarter: +21.9%). In response to such challenges, the
Group will continue to enrich the product portfolio, increase trendy beauty
products with exclusive distributorship, conduct staff training on providing

quality professional services, and

step up internal consolidation. It
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will also continue to expand the
store network of Colourmix and
MORIMOR strategically with a
prudent attitude. To cope with
the future development of the
cosmetics business, the Group
has completed the acquisition of
a property at 3/F, Wyler Centre
Phase 11, Tai Lin Pai Road, Kwai
Chung with a floor area of 25,618
square feet in April 2015 at a consideration of HK$86,680,000. The acquired
property is used for the purpose of expanding its cosmetics warehouse and
office unit.

Regarding the fashion retail business, the Hong Kong and Macau market
accounted for 79.6% of the total turnover of fashion business of the Group.
The fashion retail business will continue to focus primarily on the Hong
Kong and Macau market. To cope with the stagnant retail environment as
well as to meet constantly changing needs in the market, the Group will
continue to optimise product designs and improve customers’ shopping
experience. As for the overseas markets, the Group has practically ceased
the fashion retail operation in Taiwan at the end of March 2016. This will
not only alleviate the negative impact on the overall results of the fashion
business in the future, but will also allow the allocation of resources to other
businesses under the Group. The Group will continue to be cautious in the
adjustment of the overseas stores portfolio. Underperforming stores will be
closed for redeployment of resources to profitable stores.
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Prospects (Continued)

The Group is prudently optimistic about its future development and believes
that opportunities exist alongside with challenges. In an environment which
is full of challenges, the management will continue to closely monitor the
future market for various fluctuations and uncertainties and take appropriate
measures accordingly. In the meantime, the Group will remain to be prudent
in financial and operational management with stringent costs control and
strengthened inventory management to lower inventory costs and enhance
inventory efficiency. The Group will uplift its competitiveness in order to lay
a good foundation for sustainable growth in the future and to maintain the
healthy growth of its core businesses in the long run.

Liquidity & Financial Resources

The Group’s working capital decreased from HKS$460,446,000 as at 31st
March, 2015 to HK$423,090,000 for the year.

At the end of the reporting period, the Group’s cash and bank balances
(mainly in Hong Kong dollar and RMB) amounted to HK$80,461,000
(31st March, 2015: HK$83,379,000). The outstanding bank borrowings
(mainly in Hong Kong Dollar) amounted to HK$161,056,000 (31st March,
2015: HK$87,632,000). The borrowings were mainly used for the expansion
of cosmetics retail network and balance payments for the acquisition
of properties. On Ist April, 2015, the Group completed acquisition of a
property and investment properties, at a consideration of HK$86,680,000 and
HK$3,920,000 respectively.

At the end of the reporting period, the current ratio was 2.78 times (31st
March, 2015: 3.63 times) and the gearing ratio of the Group was 0.21
(31st March, 2015: 0.12) which was calculated based on the Group’s total
borrowings of HK$161,056,000 (31st March, 2015: HK$87,632,000) and the
total equity of HK$752,689,000 (31st March, 2015: HK$745,121,000).

At 31st March, 2016, the Group had banking facilities amounting
to HK$292,305,000 (31st March, 2015: HK$243,937,000), of which
HK$189,257,000 (31st March, 2015: HK$130,075,000) was utilised by the
Group. The management believes that existing financial resources will be
sufficient to meet future expansion plans and, if necessary, the Group will be
able to obtain additional financing on favorable terms.
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Foreign Exchange Exposure

Several subsidiaries of the Company have foreign currency purchases (mainly
in United States Dollar and Euro), which expose the Group to foreign
currency risk. Approximately 36% (2015: 38%) of purchases costs are in
foreign currencies for the year. The management closely monitors foreign
exchange exposure and will consider hedging significant foreign currency risk
by entering into forward contracts should the need arises.

Pledge of Assets

At the end of the reporting period, the amount of assets pledged by the
Group to certain banks to secure general banking facilities granted to the
Group was HK$147,676,000 (31st March, 2015: HK$55,265,000).

Contingent Liabilities

At 31st March, 2016, the Company had provided guarantees of
HK$322,042,000 (31st March, 2015: HK$263,159,000) to certain banks in
respect of banking facilities granted to certain subsidiaries of the Company of
which HK$189,257,000 (31st March, 2015: HK$130,075,000) was utilised by
the subsidiaries.

Staff & Remuneration Policies

At 31st March, 2016, the Group had approximately 2,600 employees (31st
March, 2015:
remuneration (including insurance and medical benefits) in accordance with

approximately 2,400). The Group mainly determines staff

the industry’s practices. The Group also implemented a reward scheme for
its staff based on their individual performance. In addition to their basic
remuneration and welfare, some key employees were granted share options as
reward and incentive to enhance their loyalty to the Group.

Appreciation

On behalf of the Board, I would like to extend my heartfelt thanks to all
the employees for their devotion, contribution and diligence and my deepest
gratitude to all the shareholders, customers, suppliers and business partners
for their continuous support. I sincerely hope that all of you will continue to
contribute to the success of the Group.

Cheng Chung Man, Johnny
Chairman

Hong Kong, 27th June, 2016
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The directors present their annual report and the audited consolidated
financial statements of the Company for the year ended 31st March, 2016.

Principal Activities

The Company is an investment holding company. The principal activities of
its principal subsidiaries are set out in note 30 to the consolidated financial
statements.

Business Review

Overview and Performance of the Year and Principal Risks and Uncertainties
A review of the business of the Group during the year and its future
development, an analysis of the Group’s performance using financial
key performance indicators and a description of the principal risks and
uncertainties facing the Group are provided in the “Chairman’s Statement”
section on pages 4 to 10 of this annual report, which constitute part of this
directors’ report. The capital risk management and financial risk management
objectives and policies of the Group are shown in notes 31 and 32b to the
consolidated financial statements.

Environmental Policies and Performance

The Company is committed to the sustainable development of the
environment and our society. The Group has endeavoured to comply with
laws and regulations regarding environmental protection and adopted
effective environmental policies to ensure its projects meet the required
standards and ethics in respect of environmental protection.

Compliance with Relevant Laws and Regulations

During the year under review, as far as the Board and management are
aware, there was no material breach of or non-compliance with the applicable
laws and regulations by the Group that has a significant impact on the
businesses and operations of the Group.

Key Relationships with Stakeholders

The Company recognizes that our employees, customers and suppliers and
business associates are key stakeholders to the Company’s success. We
strive to achieve corporate sustainability through engaging our employees,
providing quality products and services to our customers, collaborating with
business partners (including suppliers and contractors) to deliver quality
sustainable products and services and supporting our community.

11
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Results and Appropriations

The results of the Group for the year ended 31st March, 2016 are set out in
the consolidated statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income
on page 39 of the annual report.

An interim dividend of HKO0.8 cent per share amounting to HK$19,111,000
was declared for the year. The amount was settled by way of cash dividend
during the year. The directors resolved to recommend the payment of a
final dividend of HKO.5 cent per share to the shareholders whose names
appear on the register of members on 21st September, 2016, amounting to
HK$11,944,000, in cash and the retention of the remaining profit for the
year.

The payment of the final dividend is subject to the approval of the
shareholders at the forthcoming annual general meeting to be held on 7th
September, 2016.

Share Capital

Details of movements during the year in the share capital of the Company are
set out in note 23 to the consolidated financial statements.

Distributable Reserves of the Company

In the opinion of the directors, the Company’s reserves available for
distribution to its shareholders as at 31st March, 2016 comprise of
contributed surplus amounting to HK$53,135,000 (2015: HK$53,135,000)
and retained profits amounting to HK$2,017,000 (2015: HKS$3,424,000)
provided that, after the distribution, the Company will be able to pay its
debts as they fall due in the ordinary course of business.
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Directors

The directors of the Company during the year and up to date of this report

were:
Executive directors

Mr. CHENG Chung Man, Johnny ( Chairman)
Ms. LAM Yuk Sum ( Chief Executive Officer)

Independent non-executive directors

Dr. FOK Kam Chu, John
Mr. YEUNG Wing Kay
Mr. LAM Man Tin
(appointed on 2nd February, 2016 )
Mr. YANG Wei Tak
(resigned on 2nd February, 2016)

In accordance with articles 108 and 112 of the Company’s Articles of
Association, Mr. Cheng Chung Man, Johnny, Dr. Fok Kam Chu, John and
Mr. Lam Man Tin retire at the forthcoming annual general meeting and,
being eligible, offer themselves for re-election.

Term of Office of Independent Non-executive Directors

The term of office of each of the independent non-executive directors is the
period up to his retirement by rotation in accordance with the Company’s

Articles of Association.

Directors’ Service Contracts

Each of the executive directors has entered into a service agreement with the
Company for an initial period of three years, commencing on 1st April, 1999
which should be renewable for each term of three years until terminated by
either party by three months’ prior written notice.

Save as disclosed above, none of the directors being proposed for re-election
at the forthcoming annual general meeting has a service contract with the
Company or any of its subsidiaries which is not determinable by the Group
within one year without payment of compensation, other than statutory
compensation.

13
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Management Contracts

No contracts concerning the management and administration of the whole
or any substantial part of the business of the Company were entered into or
existed during the year.

Permitted Indemnity Provision

During the year and up to the date of this directors’ report, a permitted
indemnity provision (as defined under section 469 of the Companies
Ordinance Cap. 622 of Laws of Hong Kong (“Companies Ordinance”) for the
benefit of the directors of the Company has been and is still in force.

Directors, Senior Management Biographies
Executive directors

Mr. CHENG Chung Man, Johnny, aged 59, is the chairman of the Group.
He established the Group in 1984 and is responsible for the overall strategic
planning and formulation of corporate policies of the Group. Mr. Cheng
has over 32 years of experience in the manufacturing and retail business.
Mr. Cheng was awarded the Young Industrialist Awards of Hongkong in
November 2001 and the Ernst & Young Entrepreneur Award of the Year
2012 China in November 2012. He is the husband of Ms. Lam Yuk Sum.

Ms. LAM Yuk Sum, aged 56, is the chief executive officer of the Group and
responsible for the day-to-day management of the Group, specifically the
merchandising management and design and product development. She joined
the Group in 1987 and has over 29 years of experience in fashion design and
retail business. She is the wife of Mr. Cheng Chung Man, Johnny.

Independent non-executive directors

Dr. FOK Kam Chu, John, aged 66, is an independent non-executive director.
He holds a doctor degree in enterprise management, a master degree in
business administration and a bachelor degree in laws. He is an associate
of the Institute of Financial Accountants in United Kingdom, a registered
financial planner of the Society of Registered Financial Planners in Hong
Kong and in Mainland China as well as a certified risk planner of The
Institute of Crisis & Risks Management in Hong Kong. Dr. Fok has over
40 years’ experience in banking and management. Currently, he serves
as an independent non-executive director, a member of each of the audit
committee, nomination committee and remuneration committee of Dynamic
Holdings Limited, a company listed on the Main Board of The Stock
Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”) (stock code: 29).
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Mr. LAM Man Tin, aged 57, is an independent non-executive director. He
graduated from the University of Hull with a master degree in strategic
marketing (distance learning) in July 1996. Mr. Lam joined Aeon Stores
Co., Ltd. in 1992 and has over 20 years of experience in retail and service
industries. He was an executive director of Aeon Stores (Hong Kong) Co.,
Limited (“Aeon Stores HK™), a company listed on the Main Board of
the Stock Exchange (stock code: 984) from May 1999 to May 2012. Mr.
Lam served as the managing director of Aeon Stores HK from May 2006
to May 2012. Following his resignation from the board, he was engaged
as a consultant of Aeon Stores HK until September 2012. Mr. Lam has
been the chief executive officer strategist of Shirble Department Store
Holdings (China) Limited, a company listed on the Main Board of the Stock
Exchange (stock code: 312) since September 2013. Mr. Lam has also been an
independent non-executive director, a member of each of the audit committee
and the remuneration committee and the chairman of the nomination
committee of S. Culture International Holdings Limited, a company listed on
the Main Board of the Stock Exchange (stock code: 1255) since May 2013. He
is also the founding member of the Hong Kong Yau Tat Chuen Lions Club.

Mr. YEUNG Wing Kay, aged 63, is an independent non-executive director.
He is a Certified Public Accountant (Practising) and has been a partner of
Yeung & Cheuk, a firm of Certified Public Accountants in Hong Kong for
over 20 years. He graduated from the Chinese University of Hong Kong with
a degree of Bachelor of Social Sciences.

Senior management

Ms. WONG Chi Ying, aged 47, is the financial controller of the Group and
also the secretary of the Company. Prior to joining the Group in July 1996,
Ms. Wong worked in an international accounting firm for about four years.
She holds a bachelor degree in accountancy from the City University of Hong
Kong. She is a fellow member of the Association of Chartered Certified
Accountants in the United Kingdom and an associate member of the Hong
Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants.

Equity-Linked Agreements

Save as the Share Option Scheme set out below, during the year ended
31st March, 2016, the Company did not have newly entered or existing
equity-linked agreements.

15
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ZE-ZF1+AtH “2-=E£1+AtHE
“E-RE+ARH
Tth October, 2013 Tth October, 2013
to 6th October, 2016

“$-ZEAtE  CE-SEALAE
“E2-\E+ARH
Tth October, 2013 Tth October, 2013
to 6th October, 2018

“2-NENAZ+AR ZE-MENA-FHAE
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25th April, 2014 25th April, 2014
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“2-NENA-+AR ZE-MENA-FHAE
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25th April, 2014 25th April, 2014
to 24th April, 2019

Share Option Scheme

Pursuant to the annual general meeting of the Company held on 30th August,
2013, the Company approved and adopted a new share option scheme.

Particulars of the share option scheme adopted by the Group are set out in
note 26 to the consolidated financial statements.

No options were granted to the directors or substantial shareholders of the
Company during the year or outstanding under the share option scheme.

The following table discloses details of options held by employees of the
Group and movements in such holdings during the year ended 31st March,
2016:

RZB-1% RZB—1E
mA—-B REER  REER REER ZR=t-H
BRITHER A1 By T /XY HARTTE
Exercise Balance Granted  Exercised Cancelled/ Outstanding
fTESE price at during during  lapsed during at
Exercisable period per share 1.4.2015 the year the year the year 31.3.2016
“E-RE+AtHE 0.22587T 18,040,000 - - (800,000) 17,240,000
Z2-\&+RAR HK$0.225
Tth October, 2016
to 6th October, 2018
ZE-\5t+AtRHE 0.22587T 18,040,000 - - (800,000) 17,240,000
ZRIRE+RAAR HK$0.225
Tth October, 2018
to 6th October, 2020
“2-tENAZ+AHE 0.30047T 4,460,000 - - (440,000) 4,020,000
ZE2-nENAZ+NA HK$0.300
25th April, 2017
to 24th April, 2019
“E2-NENAZ+AAE 0.30087T 4,460,000 - - (440,000) 4,020,000

ZEZ-FNAZ+WH HKS$0.300
25th April, 2019
to 24th April, 2021

45,000,000 - - (2,480,000) 42,520,000
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At the date of this report, the total number of shares to be issued upon
exercise of the outstanding options is 39,800,000 as adjusted for options
granted, exercised, cancelled and lapsed subsequent to the reporting period.
The outstanding options represent approximately 1.7% of the issued share
capital of the Company at the date of this report.

Directors’ and Chief Executive Officer’s Interests in Shares,
Underlying Shares and Debentures

As at 31st March, 2016, the interests of the directors and chief executive
officer and their associates in the shares, underlying shares and debentures of
the Company and its associated corporations (within the meaning of Part XV
of the Securities and Futures Ordinance (“SFO”)), as recorded in the register
maintained by the Company pursuant to Section 352 of the SFO, or as
otherwise notified to the Company and The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong
Limited (the “Stock Exchange”) pursuant to the Model Code for Securities
Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers (the “Model Code”) contained
in the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on the Stock Exchange (the
“Listing Rules”), were as follows:

AAT S BT

BAE ML

FrFEEE 81T Percentage of

TEREE the issued

15 Number of issued share capital

EEHA Name of director Capacity ordinary shares held of the Company
EBEE A Mr. Cheng Chung Man, Johnny Bl A 1,308,257,768
Founder (&)
(Note)
BERBEA 173,757,514

Beneficial owner

1,482,015,282 62.04%
MEHZLL Ms. Lam Yuk Sum EEER@EA 1,308,257,768
(7TE(#EZ ) ( Chief Executive Officer) Beneficiary of Trust (FtzE)
(Note)
ERBBEA 256,027,462

Beneficial owner

1,564,285,230 65.48%
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Note: These 1,308,257,768 shares are beneficially owned by Silver Crown Profits

Limited (“Silver Crown”). The shares in Silver Crown are in turn held
by the trustee of the J Cheng Family Trust, a discretionary trust, the
discretionary objects of which include family members of Mr. Cheng
Chung Man, Johnny and Ms. Lam Yuk Sum.

Other than disclosed above and certain nominee shares in subsidiaries held by
certain directors in trust for the Group, none of the directors, chief executive
officer nor their associates had any interests or short positions in the shares,
underlying shares and debentures of the Company or any of its associated
corporations (within the meaning of part XV of the SFO) as at 31st March,
2016, as required to be recorded in the register maintained by the Company
pursuant to Section 352 of the SFO, or as otherwise notified to the Company
and the Stock Exchange pursuant to the Model Code.

Directors’ Rights to Acquire Shares or Debentures

Other than the share option scheme of the Company, at no time during the
year was the Company, its holding company or any of its subsidiaries or
fellow subsidiaries, a party to any arrangements to enable the directors of
the Company to acquire benefits by means of the acquisition of shares in, or

debentures of, the Company or any other body corporate.

Appointment of Independent Non-Executive Directors

The Company has received, from each of the independent non-executive
directors, an annual confirmation of his independence pursuant to Rule 3.13
of the Listing Rules. The Company considers all of the independent non-

executive directors are independent.

Directors’ Interests in Transactions, Arrangements or Contracts

of Significance

No transactions, arrangements or contracts of significance, to which
the Company, its holding company or any of its subsidiaries or fellow
subsidiaries was a party and in which a director of the Company or an entity
connected with a director (as defined under Section 486 of the Companies
Ordinance) had a material interest, whether directly or indirectly, subsisted at
the end of the year or at any time during the year.
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Name of shareholder

Silver Crown

Well Feel Group Limited
(“Well Feel”)

HSBC International Trustee
Limited (“HSBC International”)

iofza

Silver CrownZ 232 22 1TRXAEHWell Feel
375\ » MWell Feel/SHSBC International
ZEEMBAR - RIBEFLERPEEH
F1SEBIE X Z T » Well Feel RHSBC
International & B #% 77 1E 5% &% = HSilver
Crownii B R ZMEARARRGHHES
RERE o

Substantial Shareholders’ Interests in Shares, Underlying Shares
and Debentures

Other than disclosed above under the section headed “Directors’ and Chief
Executive Officer’s Interests in Shares, Underlying Shares and Debentures”
and other substantial shareholders’ interests disclosed in the following table,
at 31st March, 2016, the register of substantial shareholders maintained by
the Company pursuant to Section 336 of the SFO showed that the Company
had not been notified of any other relevant interests or short positions in the
shares or underlying shares of the Company.

AABES#HT
&=k

Percentage of the

F¥FFEERTEEREA

g5 Number of issued issued share capital
Capacity ordinary shares held of the Company
BERBEA 1,308,257,768 54.76%
Beneficial owner

RIS (M) 1,308,257,768 54.76%
Interest of a controlled

corporation (Note)
SEEAN(HEE) 1,308,257,768 54.76%

Trustee (Note)

Note:

The entire issued share capital of Silver Crown was held by Well Feel which in
turn was a wholly-owned subsidiary of HSBC International. By virtue of the
provisions of Part XV of the SFO, each of Well Feel and HSBC International was
deemed to be interested in all the shares of the Company in which Silver Crown
was interested.
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Major Customers and Suppliers

During the year, the aggregate purchases attributable to the Group’s five
largest suppliers and the aggregate sales attributable to the Group’s five
largest customers were less than 30% of the Group’s total purchases and total
sales for the year, respectively.

None of the directors, their close associates or any shareholders of the
Company (which to the knowledge of the directors own more than 5% of the
Company’s issued shares) had an interest in any of the Group’s five largest

customers or suppliers.

Pre-emptive Rights

There are no provisions for pre-emptive rights under the Company’s Articles
of Association, or the laws of the Cayman Islands, being the jurisdiction in
which the Company was incorporated, which would oblige the Company to
offer new shares on a pro-rata basis to existing shareholders of the Company.

Purchase, Sale or Redemption of the Company’s Listed
Securities

During the year, neither the Company nor any of its subsidiaries purchased,
sold or redeemed any of the Company’s listed securities.

Emolument Policy
The emolument policy of the senior management of the Group is set up by
the Remuneration Committee on the basis of their merit, qualifications and

competence.

The emoluments of the directors of the Company are recommended to the
Board by the Remuneration Committee, having regard to the Company’s

operating results, individual performance and comparable market statistics.

The Company has adopted a share option scheme as an incentive to directors
and eligible employees and details of the scheme are set out in note 26 to the
consolidated financial statements.
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Directors’ Report EEEHES

Sufficiency of Public Float

Based on the information that is publicly available to the Company and
within the knowledge of the directors, the Company has maintained a
sufficient public float throughout the year ended 31st March, 2016 and up to
the date of this report.

Events after the Reporting Period
There is no material subsequent event undertaken by the Company or by the
Group after 31st March, 2016 and up to the date of this annual report.

Auditor

A resolution will be submitted to the annual general meeting of the Company
to re-appoint Messrs. Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu as auditor of the Company.

On behalf of the Board
Cheng Chung Man, Johnny
Chairman

Hong Kong, 27th June, 2016

Veeko Wank0 colourmixes MoriMor O




22

Corporate Governance Report £XERREE

ARREFE(ERE HELREEZHEN
AEEHE_ET-AF=A=+—HLHF
EREBAZEGEEARSE -

EREAEM
KARRALR LT ARBERRSHE
RERMEN  #AAR-EHIHES
KEZREER  UFERRNALE -E
SERERKENLEEREEHANT
RELURER R R R & EEEME
EMEREER -

FARCERAEEMEZ A ARARE
Z5 EARBI(T LA AN ) B £+ 2O Ay
ZEEEATFH(TEEEARAFRIZE
Al K <P RIMESC -

EEERB RBE-S—AE=
=+—BLEEE  FAT-HEFLE
34457 BT 51 2 BB <P RUESC

mg Jo

RARBEETH IR ECEEAER
DRF 2 EBKT - FEARBBZE
EER LEHRRRREECESH
=2

20

ETEHRHEETE

FAREFMEFRAUMGFAEZ L
HEITAEEETES LT HOEEFA
(TR - EAHAMESETES
SHZRTFE  MARBHY  FEE
ERBHSHREE_E—AE=F=+—
B EERS8E FIEEFRIRTBA0ER -

FARTFEMAEEEALRARRHEEZ
BEEBEAARZESHEEEES (TRE
EEE5! ) BARESIZERAL TS
EFRER - AARLEREGERER
EBETEFREEE@IEEIZEH -

The board of directors (the “Board”) of the Company hereby presents this
Corporate Governance Report in the Group’s annual report for the year
ended 31st March, 2016.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE PRACTICES

Recognising the importance of a publicly listed company’s responsibilities
to enhance its transparency and accountability, the Company is committed
to maintain a high standard of corporate governance in the interests of its
shareholders. The Board believes that good corporate governance standards
are essential in providing a framework for the Company to safeguard the
interests of shareholders and to enhance corporate value and accountability.

The Company has applied the principles and code provisions as set out in
the Corporate Governance Code (the “CG Code”) contained in Appendix 14
of the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on The Stock Exchange of
Hong Kong Limited (the “Listing Rules”).

The Board is of the view that the Company has complied with all code
provisions as set out in the CG Code throughout the year ended 31st March,
2016.

The Company continues to review its corporate governance practices in
order to enhance its corporate governance standard, to comply with the
increasingly tightened regulatory requirements and to meet the rising
expectations of shareholders and investors.

MODEL CODE FOR SECURITIES TRANSACTIONS

The Company has adopted the Model Code for Securities Transactions by
Directors of Listed Issuers (the “Model Code”) as set out in Appendix 10 to
the Listing Rules as its own code of conduct regarding directors’ securities
transactions. Having made specific enquiries, all of the directors confirmed
that they have complied with the required standard as set out in the Model
Code throughout the year ended 31st March, 2016.

The Company has also established written guidelines on terms no less
exacting than the Model Code (the “Employees Written Guidelines”™)
for securities transactions by employees who are likely to possess inside
information of the Company. No incident of non-compliance of the
Employees Written Guidelines by the employees was noted by the Company.
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BOARD OF DIRECTORS

The Board currently comprises five members, consisting of two executive
directors and three independent non-executive directors, as follows:

RFEEL(H)
FHe Length of
Age Service (Since)
Executive directors:
Mr. CHENG Chung Man, Johnny 59 1999
( Chairman of the Board)
Ms. LAM Yuk Sum 56 1999
( Chief Executive Officer)
Independent non-executive directors:
Dr. FOK Kam Chu, John 66 2011
Mr. LAM Man Tin® 57 2016
Mr. YEUNG Wing Kay 63 2004

) Mr. Lam Man Tin was appointed as an independent non-executive
director with effect from 2nd February, 2016.

The biographical information of the directors are set out in the section
headed “Directors’ Report” on pages 14 to 15 of this annual report.

Save that Mr. Cheng Chung Man, Johnny and Ms. Lam Yuk Sum are
husband and wife, there are no financial, business, family or other material/
relevant relationships among members of the Board.
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Chairman and Chief Executive Officer

There is a clear division in the roles of Chairman and Chief Executive
Officer which are performed by different individuals. This ensures a balanced

distribution of power and authority.

Mr. Cheng Chung Man, Johnny, the Chairman of the Board, is responsible
for the leadership for and management of the Board, ensuring the effective
functioning of the Board and encouraging directors to make full and active
contribution to the Board’s affairs as well as ensuring that all significant and
key issues are discussed and where required, resolved by the Board in a timely

manner.

Ms. Lam Yuk Sum, the Chief Executive Officer of the Company, is
responsible for the day-to-day management of the Company. She is
responsible for implementing the Company’s strategy, objectives and policies
approved and delegated by the Board with the assistance of the senior
management.

The husband and wife relationship between Mr. Cheng Chung Man, Johnny
and Ms. Lam Yuk Sum does not impair the balance of power between the
Board and the management as their duties and responsibilities are clearly
defined and set out in writing.

Independent Non-executive Directors

During the year ended 31st March, 2016, the Company has at all times
met the requirements of the Listing Rules relating to the appointment of at
least three independent non-executive directors with at least one of them
possessing appropriate professional qualifications, or accounting or related

financial management expertise.

The Company has received written annual confirmation from each
independent non-executive director in respect of his independence in
accordance with the independence guidelines set out in Rule 3.13 of the
Listing Rules. The Company is of the view that all independent non-executive
directors are independent.
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Non-executive Directors and Directors’ Election

Each of the directors of the Company is engaged on a service agreement (for
executive director) or an appointment letter (for independent non-executive
director) for a term of 3 and 2 years respectively. The appointment of
executive director may be terminated by either party by giving three months’
prior written notice.

Pursuant to the Company’s Articles of Association (“Articles”), all directors
of the Company are subject to retirement by rotation at least once every three
years at the Company’s annual general meetings and any director appointed
by the Board to fill a casual vacancy or as an addition to the Board shall
hold office until the next following general meeting or the next following
annual general meeting, as the case may be, of the Company after his/her
appointment and be subject to re-election at such meeting.

Responsibilities, Accountabilities and Contributions of the Board
and Management

The Board is responsible for the leadership and control of, and promoting
the success of the Company. This is achieved by the setting up of corporate
and strategic objectives and policies, and the monitoring and evaluations of
operating activities and financial performance of the Company.

All the directors carry out their duties in good faith and in compliance with
applicable laws and regulations, taking decisions objectively and acting in the
interests of the Company and its shareholders at all times.

The Company has formalised and adopted written terms on the division of
functions reserved to the Board and those delegated to the management. The
Board reserves for its decision all major matters of the Company, including
the approval and monitoring of all policy matters, overall strategies and
budgets, internal control and risk management systems, material transactions
(in particular those that may involve conflict of interests), financial
information, appointment of directors and other significant financial and
operational matters.
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The day-to-day management, administration and operations of the Company
are delegated to the Chief Executive Officer and senior management of the
Company. The Board has delegated a schedule of responsibilities to these
officers for the implementation of Board decisions. The Board periodically
reviews the delegated functions and work tasks. Prior to entering into any
significant transactions, the aforesaid officers have to obtain Board approval.

All directors have full and timely access to all relevant information as well as
the advice and services of the Company Secretary and senior management,
with a view to ensuring compliance with Board procedures and all applicable
laws and regulations. Any director may request independent professional
advice in appropriate circumstances at the Company’s expense, upon
reasonable request being made to the Board.

Practices and Conduct of Meetings

The Board conducts at least four regular Board meetings a year and
additional meetings are arranged as and when required to discuss significant
issues. Schedules for annual meeting and draft agenda of each meeting are
sent to all directors in advance. Notice of at least 14 days is given of a regular
Board meeting. For other Board and committee meetings, reasonable notice
is generally given.

Board papers together with all appropriate, complete and reliable
information are dispatched to all directors at least 3 days before each regular
Board meeting to ensure that the directors have sufficient time to review the
related documents and be adequately prepared for the meeting. The Board
and each director also have separate and independent access to the senior
management whenever necessary.

The Company Secretary is responsible to keep minutes of all Board meetings
and committee meetings. Draft minutes are circulated to all directors for
comments within a reasonable time after each meeting and the final versions
are open for directors’ inspection.

The Company’s Articles contains provisions requiring directors to abstain
from voting and not to be counted in the quorum at meetings for approving
transactions in which such directors or any of their associates have a material

interest.
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Continuous Professional Development of Directors

Directors keep abreast of responsibilities as a director of the Company and of
the conduct, business activities and development of the Company.

During the year ended 31st March, 2016, Mr. Lam Man Tin, the newly
appointed independent non-executive director, received induction on the
first occasion of his appointment so as to ensure that he has appropriate
understanding of the business and operations of the Company and that he
is fully aware of his responsibilities and obligations under the Listing Rules
and relevant statutory requirements. Such induction was supplemented by
meetings with senior management of the Company.

Directors should participate in appropriate continuous professional
development to develop and refresh their knowledge and skills to ensure that
their contribution to the Board remains informed and relevant. Internally-
facilitated briefings for directors have been arranged and reading material on

relevant topics has also been issued to directors where appropriate.

According to the records maintained by the Company, the directors received
the following training during the year ended 31st March, 2016 with emphasis
on their roles, functions and duties as directors of a listed company:

MARAF]
HEmE 2B
& Wil e
Attending In-house
seminars/ briefing
conferences/ organised by
Name of Directors forums the Company
Executives Directors
Mr. CHENG Chung Man, Johnny v v
Ms. LAM Yuk Sum v v
Independent Non-executive Directors
Dr. FOK Kam Chu, John v
Mr. YEUNG Wing Kay v v
Mr. LAM Man Tin v
(appointed on 2nd February, 2016 )
Mr. YANG Wei Tak v

(resigned on 2nd February, 2016 )
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Apart from the above, some directors also read materials relevant to the
corporate governance matters or to the directors’ duties and responsibilities.

All the directors understand the importance of continuous professional
development and are committed to participating in any suitable training to

develop and refresh their knowledge and skills.

BOARD COMMITTEES

The Board has established three committees, namely, the Remuneration
Committee, the Nomination Committee and the Audit Committee, for
overseeing particular aspects of the Company’s affairs. All Board committees
of the Company are established with defined written terms of reference.
The terms of reference of all three committees are posted on the Company’s
website and Hong Kong Exchanges and Clearing Limited’s website and are
available to shareholders upon request.

All members of the Audit Committee while the majority of the members
of each of the Remuneration Committee and Nomination Committee
are independent non-executive directors and the list of the chairman and
members of each Board committee is set out under “Corporate Information”

on pages 2 to 3 of this annual report.

The Board committees are provided with sufficient resources to discharge
their duties and, upon reasonable request, are able to seek independent

professional advice in appropriate circumstances, at the Company’s expense.
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Remuneration Committee

The Remuneration Committee consists of all directors of the Company, the
majority of them are independent non-executive directors.

The principal functions of the Remuneration Committee include reviewing
and making recommendations to the Board on the Company’s policy
and structure of all directors and senior management remuneration and
on the remuneration packages of all directors and senior management.
The Remuneration Committee is also responsible for establishing formal
and transparent procedures for developing such remuneration policy
and structure to ensure that no director or any of his/her associates will
participate in deciding his/her own remuneration, which remuneration will
be determined by reference to the performance of the individual and the
Company as well as market practice and conditions.

The Remuneration Committee held three meetings during the year ended
31st March, 2016. During the meetings, the Remuneration Committee has
performed the following work: (i) reviewing the bonus payment to directors
and senior management; (ii) reviewing the salary increment policy for all
directors and senior management of the Company; (iii) reviewing and
recommending to the Board regarding the remuneration package of the
independent non-executive director whose appointment has been renewed;
and (iv) reviewing and recommending to the Board regarding the terms of
letter of appointment and the proposed remuneration of Mr. Lam Man Tin
who was appointed during the year.
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Senior Management’s Emoluments

Pursuant to code provision B.1.5 of the CG Code, details of the annual
remuneration of the members of the senior management (other than
Directors) by bands for the year ended 31st March, 2016 is as follows:

EEAE

Number of employee(s)
Not exceeding HK$1,000,000 1
HK$1,00,001 to HK$1,500,000 2

Details of the remuneration of each of the Directors for the year ended 31st
March, 2016 are set out in note 9 to the consolidated financial statements.

Nomination Committee

The Nomination Committee consists of all directors of the Company, the
majority of them are independent non-executive directors.

The principal duties of the Nomination Committee include reviewing the
structure, size and composition of the Board, identifying individuals suitably
qualified to become Board members, making recommendations to the Board
on the appointment and succession planning for directors, and assessing the
independence of independent non-executive directors.

The Company also recognises and embraces the benefits of having a diverse
Board and sees increasing diversity at the Board level as an essential
element in maintaining the Company’s competitive advantage. The Board
has adopted a “Board Diversity Policy” (the “Policy”) which sets out the
approach to achieve diversity on the Board and the Nomination Committee is
responsible for monitoring the implementation of the Policy. In determining
the optimal composition of the Board, the Company takes into consideration
skills,
background, gender, age and other qualities of the members of the Board.

differences in the talents, regional and industry experience,
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The Nomination Committee reviews annually the structure, size and
composition of the Board and where appropriate, make relevant
recommendations on changes to the Board to complement the Company’s
corporate strategy. In recommending candidates for appointment to the
Board, the Nomination Committee will consider candidates on merit against
objective criteria and with due regard for the benefits of diversity on the

Board.

During the year ended 31st March, 2016, the Nomination Committee held
three meetings to review the structure, size and composition of the Board,
to consider and recommend to the Board the appointment of Mr. Lam Man
Tin as independent non-executive director, to assess the independence of the
independent non-executive directors and to review the re-appointment of
independent non-executive directors.

The Nomination Committee is of the view that the current composition of
the Board is a balanced and diversified mix that is relevant to the Company’s
business growth.

Audit Committee

The Audit Committee comprises all the three independent non-executive
directors with the chairman of which possesses the appropriate professional
qualifications and accounting expertise. None of the committee members is a
former partner of the Company’s external auditor.

The main duties of the Audit Committee are: to oversee the Company’s
relationship with the external auditor; to review the financial information;
to oversee the Company’s financial reporting system, internal control
system and risk management system; and to review arrangements to enable
employees to raise concerns about possible improprieties in financial

reporting, internal control or other matters of the Company.

To comply with the amendments to the CG Code relating to internal control
and risk management, the Board has adopted a new terms of reference for the
Audit Committee in November 2015 which would apply to the Company’s
accounting periods beginning on or after 1st January, 2016.
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During the year ended 31st March, 2016, the Audit Committee held five
meetings of which the Chairman of the Board and the Chief Executive Officer
attended four of these meetings. A summary of work performed by the Audit
Committee during the year was as follows:

(i) reviewed and commented on audited annual results for the year ended
31st March, 2015 and unaudited interim results for the six month ended
30th September, 2015 respectively;

(i) reviewed the business performance for the three month ended 30th June,
2015 and nine month ended 31st December, 2015;

(iii) reviewed the scope of audit work, auditors’ fee and terms of engagement
and recommending re-appointment of auditor;

(iv) reviewed the effectiveness of the system of internal control including
financial, operational and compliance controls and risk management

functions of the Group; and

(v) reviewed the questionnaire issued by the Audit Committee and answered
by the executive directors.

The Audit Committee also reviewed the reports from the Internal Audit
Department on the latest progress of internal audit assignment of
enhancement on internal control system such as setting up of operational

guidelines and standards, modifications of computer programs.

The Audit Committee also met the external auditors once without the
presence of the executive directors.

The Company’s annual results for the year ended 31st March, 2016 have been
reviewed by the Audit Committee.

There is no disagreement between the Board and the Audit Committee
regarding the appointment and re-election of the external auditor.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE FUNCTIONS

The Board is responsible for performing the functions set out in the code
provision D.3.1 of the CG Code.

The Board has reviewed the Company’s corporate governance policies and
practices, training and continuous professional development of directors and
senior management, the Company’s policies and practices on compliance with
legal and regulatory requirements, the compliance of the Model Code and
Employees Written Guidelines, and the Company’s compliance with the CG
Code and disclosure in this Corporate Governance Report.

ATTENDANCE RECORD OF DIRECTORS AND
COMMITTEE MEMBERS

The attendance record of each director at the Board and Board Committee
meetings and the general meetings of the Company held during the year
ended 31st March, 2016 is set out in the table below:

MEIBRLEERS SERY
Attendance/Number of Meetings during tenure of office

BREBEFEXRE
] FHEEE REEREE HENREE Annual
Remuneration ~ Nomination Audit General
BB Name of Directors Board Committee Committee Committee Meeting
HITEE Executive Directors
B L Mr. CHENG Chung Man, Johnny 10/10 313 3/3 4/5 1/1
MEHFL Ms. LAM Yuk Sum 10/10 3/3 3/3 4/5 1/1
BUHHTEE Independent Non-Executive Directors
B EL Dr. FOK Kam Chu, John 8/10 3/3 3/3 5/5 1/1
Bk ELE Mr. YEUNG Wing Kay 9/10 3/3 3/3 515 1/1
ML Mr. LAM Man Tin 2/2 1/1 1/1 2/2 0/0
(RZE—AF (appointed on 2nd February, 2016)
ZHA-HEZF)
BEERE Mr. YANG Wei Tak 6/8 12 12 3/3 1/1
(RZE—AF (resigned on 2nd February, 2016 )
ZHBHEHE)

ERTHRERERTESEFE 2B TR

BIFRTESRITEE

The Chairman also held meetings with the independent non-executive

directors without the presence of executive director during the year.
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DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITIES IN RESPECT OF
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The directors acknowledge their responsibility for preparing the financial
statements of the Company for the year ended 31st March, 2016 and ensure
that the financial statements give a true and fair view of the state of affairs of
the Group and are prepared in accordance with statutory requirements and
applicable accounting standards.

The statement of the independent auditors of the Company about their
reporting responsibilities on the financial statements is set out in the Section
headed “Independent Auditor’s Report” on pages 37 to 38 of this annual
report.

AUDITORS’ REMUNERATION

A summary of audit and non-audit services provided by the Company’s
external auditors, Messrs. Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu, and their
corresponding remuneration are as follows:

24 ELER

Category of Services Fee Paid/Payable

FET

HKS$'000

Audit Service 2,119
Non-audit Services

— Tax service 417

— Other professional services 51

TOTAL 2,587

INTERNAL CONTROLS

The Board is responsible for maintaining an adequate internal control system
to safeguard shareholders’ investments and Company’s assets.

An Internal Audit Department has been set up in 2014.

The Board has conducted an annual review of the effectiveness of the internal
control system of the Group for the year ended 31st March, 2016. Such
review covered the financial, operational, compliance and risk management
aspects of the Group. The Board has also considered the adequacy of
resources, qualifications and experience of staff of the Group’s accounting
and financial reporting function, and their training programmes and budget.
There were no significant areas of concern during the year under review.
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COMPANY SECRETARY

Ms. Wong Chi Ying, the financial controller of the Group, has been the
Company Secretary of the Company since 1999. Ms. Wong complied with the
qualification and training requirements under the Listing Rules for the year
ended 31st March, 2016.

SHAREHOLDERS’ RIGHTS

To safeguard shareholders’ interests and rights, a separate resolution is
proposed for each substantially separate issue in general meetings, including
the election of individual directors, for shareholders’ consideration and
voting. All resolutions put forward in general meetings are taken by poll
pursuant to the Listing Rules and the poll results are posted on the websites
of the Company and of Hong Kong Exchanges and Clearing Limited after
each general meeting. Detailed procedures for conducting a poll are also
explained during the proceedings of meetings.

Convening an Extraordinary General Meeting by Shareholders

Extraordinary general meetings may be convened on the requisition of one
or more shareholders holding not less than one tenth of the paid up capital
of the Company having the right of voting at general meetings pursuant
to article 64 of the Company’s Articles. Such requisition shall be made in
writing to the Company Secretary, stating the business to be transacted, and
signed by the requisitionist(s). Shareholders should follow the requirements
and procedures as set out in the Company’s Articles.

Putting Forward Proposals at General Meetings

There are no provisions in the Company’s Articles or the Cayman Islands
Companies Law for shareholders to move new resolutions at general
meetings. Shareholders who wish to move a resolution may request the
Company to convene a general meeting in accordance with the procedures set
out in the preceding paragraph.

As regards proposing a person for election as a director of the Company,
please refer to the “Procedures for Shareholders to Propose a Person for
Election as a Director” which is posted on the Company’s website.

Putting Forward Enquiries to the Board

For putting forward any enquiries to the Board of the Company,
shareholders may send written enquiries to the Company.

Note: The Company will not normally deal with verbal or anonymous enquiries.
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Contact Details

Shareholders may send their enquiries or requests as mentioned above to the
following:

Address: 10/F., Wyler Centre Phase 11, 192-200 Tai Lin Pai Road, Kwai Chung,
New Territories, Hong Kong

(For the attention of the Company Secretary)

Fax: (852) 23109017

Email: contact@veeko.com.hk

Shareholders are encouraged to provide, amongst other things, in particular,
their email addresses to the Company in order to facilitate timely and
effective communication.

For the avoidance of doubt, shareholder(s) must deposit and send the original
duly signed written requisition, notice or statement, or enquiry (as the case
may be) to the above address and provide their full name, contact details and
identification in order to give effect thereto. Shareholders’ information may
be disclosed as required by law.

INVESTOR RELATIONSHIP
Communications with shareholders and investors

The Company endeavors to maintain a high level of transparency in
communicating with shareholders and the investment community at large.
The Company is committed to continue to maintain an open and effective
communication policy and to update shareholders, investors and general
public on relevant information on its business in a timely manner, subject to
relevant regulatory requirements, through the annual reports, interim reports,
announcements and other corporate communications.

The Board welcomes shareholders’ views on matters affecting the Group,
and encourages their attendance at general meetings to communicate any
concerns they may have with the Board or management directly. The
Company’s annual general meeting is an especially important forum. In
order to encourage and facilitate shareholders’ attendance at its annual
general meeting, the Company gives at least 20 clear business days’ prior
notice together with a detailed agenda. The Chairman of the Board and
the chairman of each Board committees (or their delegates) are available to
answer questions at general meetings.

As a channel to promote effective communication, the Company maintains a
website at http://www.irasia.com/listco/hk/veeko/index.htm, where up-to-date
information and updates on the Company’s structure, board of directors,
announcements, financial information and other information are posted.

Constitutional document

During the year under review, there was no change in the Company’s Articles.
An up to date version of the Company’s Articles is also available on the
websites of the Company and Hong Kong Exchanges and Clearing Limited.
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TO THE MEMBERS OF VEEKO INTERNATIONAL HOLDINGS LIMITED
(incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited liability)

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of Veeko International
Holdings Limited (the “Company”) and its subsidiaries (collectively
referred to as the “Group”) set out on pages 39 to 107, which comprise the
consolidated statement of financial position as at 31st March, 2016, and the
consolidated statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income,
consolidated statement of changes in equity and consolidated statement of
cash flows for the year then ended, and a summary of significant accounting

policies and other explanatory information.

Directors’ Responsibility for the Consolidated Financial
Statements

The directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation of
consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair view in accordance
with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards issued by the Hong Kong
Institute of Certified Public Accountants and the disclosure requirements of
the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance, and for such internal control as the
directors determine is necessary to enable the preparation of consolidated
financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to
fraud or error.

Auditor’s Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these consolidated financial
statements based on our audit and to report our opinion solely to you, as
a body, in accordance with our agreed terms of engagement, and for no
other purpose. We do not assume responsibility towards or accept liability
to any other person for the contents of this report. We conducted our audit
in accordance with Hong Kong Standards on Auditing issued by the Hong
Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants. Those standards require
that we comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit
to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the consolidated financial
statements are free from material misstatement.
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An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about
the amounts and disclosures in the consolidated financial statements.
The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s judgment, including the
assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the consolidated financial
statements, whether due to fraud or error. In making those risk assessments,
the auditor considers internal control relevant to the entity’s preparation of
the consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair view in order
to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not
for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the entity’s
internal control. An audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness of
accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates
made by the directors, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the
consolidated financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion.

Opinion

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true and fair
view of the financial position of the Group as at 31st March, 2016, and its
financial performance and cash flows for the year then ended in accordance
with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards and have been properly
prepared in compliance with the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong

Companies Ordinance.

Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu
Certified Public Accountants

Hong Kong, 27th June, 2016
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For the year ended 31st March, 2016 BE_Z—A"FE=A=+—HLHFE
2016 2015
J/ifz3 FERT FET
Notes HKS$’ 000 HKS$’ 000
BEH Turnover 5 2,226,463 1,996,920
HEMA Cost of goods sold (1,300,266) (1,112,543)
EF Gross profit 926,197 884,377
HERDSHEEAE Selling and distribution costs (713,215) (633,591)
THEHM Administrative expenses (137,288) (128,679)
HMBA ~ S R ER Other income, gains and losses 4,742 1,112
REMELATEELA Increase in fair value of
investment properties 154 560

MERE Finance costs 6 (3,779) (2,281)
BRAR AT F Profit before tax 76,811 121,498
FIEMASZ Income tax expense 7 (17,878) (19,057)
REEHF Profit for the year 8 58,933 102,441
AEEHMEME Other comprehensive (expense) income

(B2 )M for the year
BB AJHEEFAIEE Items that may be reclassified subsequently

BmZEH to profit or loss

REBNEBELZ Exchange differences arising on

PE R EZE translation of foreign operations (1,925) 5,189
AFEREEBA Total comprehensive income
for the year 57,008 107,630

BREF Earnings per share 12

- - basic HK2.467 centsi&fll  HK4.365 cents& 1l

— — diluted HK2.456 cents3& 1l HK4.354 cents&Al

Veeko Wank0 colourmixes MoriMor O
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31.3.2016 31.3.2015
HraE FHET FHET
Notes HK$’ 000 HKS$’ 000
Non-current Assets
Investment properties 13 6,650 2,400
Property, plant and equipment 14 235,359 148,692
Prepaid lease payments 15 7,155 7,722
Rental deposits paid 77,113 63,135
Deposits paid for acquisition of
property, plant and equipment - 59,892
Deposits paid for acquisition of
investment properties - 2,517
Deferred tax assets 16 7,257 9,893
333,534 294,251

Current Assets
Inventories 17 487,192 449,580
Trade and other receivables

18 41,094 56,442
Prepaid lease payments 15 252 262
Rental and utility deposits paid 51,603 45,943
Pledged bank deposits 19 6,235 6,500
Bank balances, deposits and cash 20 74,226 76,879
660,602 635,606
Current Liabilities
Trade and other payables
21 74,255 78,185
Rental deposits received 17 12
Secured bank borrowings
— due within one year 22 161,056 82,487
Tax payable 2,184 14,476
237,512 175,160
Net Current Assets 423,090 460,446
756,624 754,697
Capital and Reserves
Share capital 23 23,888 23,888
Reserves 728,801 721,233
752,689 745,121
Non-current Liabilities
Secured bank borrowings
— due after one year 22 - 5,145
Deferred tax liabilities 16 3,935 4,431
_ 393 ___ 9,376
756,624 754,697

BEEGENRE—AREANAZ+CH#tE  The consolidated financial statements on pages 39 to 107 were approved and

RIS B MEIEEITENGS

RO ULATIHNALRREE:

ZE
HEX

1
MEH

HBi#5%  authorised for issue by the board of directors on 27th June, 2016 and are
signed on its behalf by:

Cheng Chung Man, Johnny
Chairman

Lam Yuk Sum
Director
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Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity i 8 E&8HF

For the year ended 31st March, 2016

BRERRE
ke RGER  ERRE  BAREG  AEERE Share  BEEA
Share Share  Translation ~ Special  Statutory option  Retained ait
capital premium reserve reserve reserves reserve profits Total
Tn TR TEn  TEn TR TR Thn TR
HK$'000  HKS'000 HK$'000  HKS'000  HKS'000  HK$'000  HKS'000  HK$'000
At 1st April, 2014 23,153 187,012 (1,459) 2,266 181 760 443314 655,07
Profit for the year = = = = = = 102,441 102,441
Other comprehensive income for the year - - 5,189 - - - - 5,189
Total comprehensive income
for the year - - 5,189 - - - 102,441 107,630
Recognition of equity-settled share-based
payments - - - - - 859 - 859
Issue of shares on exercise of share options 83 2,057 - - - (323) - 1817
Share options lapsed/cancelled - - - - - (24 ) -
Dividends - Cash (Note I1) - - - - - - (20412) (20,412)
~ Serip alternative 652 15,979 - - - - (16,631) -
Sub-total 735 18,036 - - - 294 (36,801) (17,736)
At 31st March, 2015 23888 205,048 3730 2,266 181 1,054 508,954 745,121
Profit for the year = = = = = = 58,933 58,933
Other comprehensive expense for the year - - (1,925) - - - - (1,925)
Total comprehensive (expense) income
for the year - - (1,925) - - - 58,933 57,008
Recognition of equity-settled share-based
payments - - - - - 126 - 126
Share options lapsed/cancelled - - - - - (57) 51 -
Transfer - - - - 2 - 22) -
Dividends - Cash (Note I1) - - - - - - (50,166) (50,166)
Sub-total - - - - W) 669 (50,131) (49,440)
At 315t March, 2016 23888 205,048 1,805 2,266 203 1,723 517,756 752,689
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(8 Srsliih el aiemention Changes in Equity i S EREE X

For the year ended 31st March, 2016
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The special reserve of the Group represents the aggregate of:

(a)

(b)

the difference between the nominal value of share capital of Veeko
Holdings Limited and the nominal value of the share capital issued
by the Company as consideration for the acquisition, arisen from the

group reorganisation in 1999; and

the difference between the aggregate nominal value of the share
capital of the subsidiaries when they were acquired by Veeko Holdings
Limited prior to the group reorganisation and the nominal value of the
share capital issued by Veeko Holdings Limited as consideration for

the acquisition.

The statutory reserves of the Group comprise the aggregate of:

(a)

(b)

non-distributable reserves set aside by the Macau subsidiaries in

accordance with relevant statutory requirements; and

reserves required by the relevant laws of the People’s Republic of
China (the “PRC”) applicable to the Company’s PRC subsidiaries
and are appropriated at directors’ discretion, which are complied with

Articles of Association of respective PRC subsidiaries.



Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows ZEHERER

For the year ended 31st March, 2016 HEZ—RF=A=+—HLEFE
2016 2015
TFET TFET
HKS$’000 HKS$’ 000
EEER OPERATING ACTIVITIES
B A5 A A Profit before tax 76,811 121,498
FMTSNIEE LR : Adjustments for:
FE(EEER )2E (Reversal of allowance) allowance
for inventories (3,884) 9,327
FEfT T E TR # Amortisation of prepaid lease
payments 256 264
e Depreciation 41,256 40,266
MERAR Finance costs 3,779 2,281
BREMEATEELA Increase in fair value of investment
properties (154) (560)
FMEUWA Interest income 279) (499)
HEEZE - WERXHE Loss on disposal of property, plant and
B5ig equipment 1,315 378
LR HAEERZELES Share-based payment expenses 726 859
EEEEHAICREES Operating cash flows before movements
HE&RE in working capital 119,826 173,814
=FEEM Increase in inventories (33,728) (45,970)
FER B8 5 Fh I8 K Ho1th FE LY Decrease in trade and other receivables
MIERD 12,237 314
S HEE RKERESIEM Increase in rental and utility
deposits paid (19,639) (8,103)
FEfHE 578 R E Ath Increase in trade and
FE A FRIEIE N other payables 227 9,151
E U FE £ & LN Increase in rental deposits received 5 -
REEEFELEZRSE Cash generated from operations 78,928 129,206
S EEFER Hong Kong Profits Tax paid (24,391) (10,249)
REMBEER ZS LRI Tax paid in other jurisdictions (3,736) (2,287)
REFEXHHE SRR NET CASH FROM OPERATING
ACTIVITIES 50,801 116,670
BREXE INVESTING ACTIVITIES
BEEX WEKEE Purchase of property, plant and
equipment (71,198) (40,306)
EEREME Purchase of investment properties (1,579) -
SUF B Interest received 279 499
HEEE WEREE Proceeds from disposal of property,
plant and equipment 92 487
WEEX BEREMZ Deposits paid for acquisition of property,
EffRE plant and equipment = (59,892)
WERENMEZSTR: Deposits paid for acquisition of
investment properties - (2,517)
FRERD Decrease in certificate of deposit - 6,253
A& B NET CASH USED IN

&35 INVESTING ACTIVITIES (72,406) (95,476)
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Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows F8HERER

For the year ended 31st March, 2016
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FINANCING ACTIVITIES

New import loans raised

New bank loans raised

Repayment of import loans

Dividends paid

Repayment of bank loans

Interest paid on bank borrowings

Proceeds from exercise of share
options

NET CASH FROM (USED IN)
FINANCING ACTIVITIES

NET DECREASE IN CASH
AND CASH EQUIVALENTS

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT

BEGINNING OF THE YEAR

EFFECT OF FOREIGN EXCHANGE

RATE CHANGES

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS
AT END OF THE YEAR
Represented by bank balances,

deposits and cash

2016 2015
TFET TFET
HK$’ 000 HKS’ 000
310,010 226,881
128,444 21,000
(322,194) (205,759)
(50,166) (20,412)
(42,836) (56,284)
(3,779) (2,281)

- 1,817
19,479 (35,038)
(2,126) (13,844)
76,879 91,279
(527) (556)
74,226 76,879
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1. General

The Company was incorporated as an exempted company with limited
liability in the Cayman Islands and its shares are listed on The Stock
Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”). The directors
consider the direct holding company is Silver Crown Profits Limited, a
company incorporated in the British Virgin Islands, which is ultimately
owned by HSBC International Trustee Limited for J Cheng Family Trust.
The addresses of the registered office and the principal place of business of
the Company are disclosed in “Corporate Information” of the annual report.

The Company is an investment holding company. The principal activities of
its principal subsidiaries are set out in note 30.

The consolidated financial statements are presented in Hong Kong dollar,

which is also the functional currency of the Company.

2. Application of New and Revised Hong Kong Financial
Reporting standards (“HKFRSs”)

The Group has applied the following amendments to HKFRSs issued by the
Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants (the “HKICPA”) for
the first time in the current year.

Amendments to HKAS 19
Amendments to HKFRSs

Defined Benefit Plans: Employee Contributions
Annual Improvements to HKFRSs 2010-2012 Cycle

Amendments to HKFRSs Annual Improvements to HKFRSs 2011-2013 Cycle

The application of the amendments to HKFRSs in the current year has had
no material impact on the Group’s financial performance and positions for
the current and prior years and/or disclosures set out in these consolidated
financial statements.
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2.  Application of New and Revised Hong Kong Financial

Reporting standards (“HKFRSs”) ( Continued)
New and revised HKFRS issued but not yet effective

The Group has not early applied the following new and revised HKFRSs that

have been issued but are not yet effective:

HKFRS 9

HKFRS 15

HKFRS 16

Amendments to HKAS 1

Amendments to HKAS 16
and HKAS 38

Amendments to HKAS 16
and HKAS 41

Amendments to HKAS 27

Amendments to HKFRS 10
and HKAS 28

Amendments to HKFRS 10,
HKFRS 12 and HKAS 28

Amendments to HKFRS 11

Amendments to HKFRSs

Financial Instruments!

Revenue from Contracts with Customers!

Leases*

Disclosure Initiative?

Clarification of Acceptable Methods of Depreciation
and Amortisation®

Agriculture: Bearer Plants

Equity Method in Separate Financial Statements?

Sales or Contribution of Assets between an Investor
and its Associate or Joint Venture®

Investment Entities: Applying the Consolidation
Exception’

Accounting for Acquisitions of Interests in Joint
Operations?
Annual Improvements to HKFRSs 2012 — 2014 Cycle?

! Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1st January, 2018.

2 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1st January, 2016.

3 Effective for annual periods beginning on a date to be determined.

4 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1st January, 2019.
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P Application of New and Revised Hong Kong Financial

Reporting standards (“HKFRSs”) ( Continued)

HKFRS 16 Leases

HKFRS 16, which upon the effective date will supersede HKAS 17 Leases,
introduces a single lessee accounting model and requires a lessee to recognize
assets and liabilities for all leases with a term of more than 12 months, unless
the underlying asset is of low value. Specifically, under HKFRS 16, a lessee
is required to recognise a right-of-use asset representing its right to use the
underlying leased asset and a lease liability representing its obligation to
make lease payments. Accordingly, a lessee should recognise depreciation
of the right-of-use asset and interest on the lease liability, and also classifies
cash payments of the lease liability into a principal portion and an interest
portion and presents them in the statement of cash flows. Also, the right-of-
use asset and these lease liability are initially measured on a present value
basis. The measurement includes non-cancellable lease payments and also
includes payments to be made in optional periods if the lessee is reasonably
certain to exercise an option to extend the lease, or not to exercise an option
to terminate the lease. This accounting treatment is significantly different
from the lessee accounting for leases that are classified as operating leases
under the predecessor standard, HKAS 17.

In respect of the lessor accounting, HKFRS 16 substantially carries forward
the lessor accounting requirements in HKAS 17. Accordingly, a lessor
continues to classify its leases as operating leases or finance leases, and to

account for these two types of leases differently.

The directors of the Company will assess the impact of application of
HKFRS 16. For the moment, it is not practicable to provide a reasonable
estimate of the effect of the application of HKFRS 16 until the Group
performs a detail review.

The directors of the Company anticipate that the application of other
new and revised HKFRSs will have no material effect on the Group’s
consolidated financial statements.
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3.  Significant Accounting Policies

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared in accordance with
HKFRSs issued by the HKICPA. In addition, the consolidated financial
statements include applicable disclosures required by the Rules Governing the
Listing of Securities (the “Listing Rules”) on The Stock Exchange and by the
Hong Kong Companies Ordinance (“CO”).

The provision of the new Hong Kong Companies Ordinance (Cap. 622)
regarding preparation of accounts and directors’ reports and audits became
effective for the Company for the financial year ended 31st March, 2016.
Further, the disclosure requirements set out in the Listing Rules regarding
annual accounts have been amended with reference to the new CO and
to streamline with HKFRSs. Accordingly the presentation and disclosure
of information in the consolidated financial statements for the financial
year ended 31st March, 2016 have been changed to comply with these new
requirements. Comparative information in respect of the financial year ended
31st March, 2015 are presented and disclosed in the consolidated financial
statements based on the new requirements. Information previously required
to be disclosed under the predecessor CO or Listing Rules but not under new
CO or amended Listing Rules are not disclosed in these consolidated financial
statements.
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3.  Significant Accounting Policies ( Continued)

Basis of preparation

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared on the historical
cost basis except for investment properties that are measured at fair value at
the end of each reporting period, as explained in the accounting policies set
out below.

Historical cost is generally based on the fair value of the consideration given
in exchange of goods.

Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to
transfer a liability in an orderly transaction between market participants at
the measurement date, regardless of whether that price is directly observable
or estimated using another valuation technique. In estimating the fair value
of an asset or a liability, the Group takes into account the characteristics of
the asset or liability if market participants would take those characteristics
into account when pricing the asset or liability at the measurement date.
Fair value for measurement and/or disclosure purposes in these consolidated
financial statements is determined on such a basis, except for share-based
payment transactions that are within the scope of HKFRS 2 Share-based
Payment, leasing transactions that are within the scope of HKAS 17, and
measurements that have some similarities to fair value but are not fair value,
such as net realisable value in HKAS 2 Inventories or value in use in HKAS
36 Impairment of Assets.

In addition, for financial reporting purposes, fair value measurements are
categorised into Level 1, 2 or 3 based on the degree to which the inputs to the
fair value measurements are observable and the significance of the inputs to
the fair value measurement in its entirety, which are described as follows:

. Level 1 inputs are quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets
for identical assets or liabilities that the entity can access at the
measurement date;

. Level 2 inputs are inputs, other than quoted prices included within
Level 1, that are observable for the asset or liability, either directly or
indirectly; and

. Level 3 inputs are unobservable inputs for the asset or liability.

The principal accounting policies are set out below.
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3.  Significant Accounting Policies ( Continued)

Basis of consolidation

The consolidated financial statements incorporate the financial statements
of the Company and entities controlled by the Company and its subsidiaries.
Control is achieved when the Company:

. has power over the investee;

. is exposed, or has rights, to variable returns from its involvement with
the investee; and

. has the ability to use its power to affect its returns.

The Group reassesses whether or not it controls an investee if facts and
circumstances indicate that there are changes to one or more of the three
elements of control listed above.

Consolidation of a subsidiary begins when the Group obtains control over
the subsidiary and ceases when the Group loses control of the subsidiary.
Specifically, income and expenses of a subsidiary acquired or disposed of
during the year are included in the consolidated statement of profit or loss
and other comprehensive income from the date the Group gains control until
the date when the Group ceases to control the subsidiary.

Where necessary, adjustments are made to the financial statements of
subsidiaries to bring their accounting policies in line with the Group’s
accounting policies.

All intra-group assets and liabilities, equity, income, expenses and cash flows
relating to transactions between members of the Group are eliminated in full
on consolidation.

Revenue recognition

Revenue is measured at the fair value of the consideration received or
receivable and represents amounts receivable for goods sold in normal course
of business, net of discounts and sales related taxes.

Revenue from the sale of goods is recognised when goods are delivered and
titles have passed.

Rental income, including rental invoiced in advance, from properties under
operating leases, is recognised in profit or loss on a straight-line basis over
the terms of the relevant leases.

Interest income from a financial asset is recognised when it is probable that
the economic benefits will flow to the Group and the amount of income can
be measured reliably. Interest income from a financial asset is accrued on
a time basis, by reference to the principal outstanding and at the effective
interest rate applicable, which is the rate that exactly discounts the estimated
future cash receipts through the expected life of the financial asset to that
asset’s net carrying amount on initial recognition.
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3.  Significant Accounting Policies ( Continued)

Investment properties

Investment properties are properties held to earn rentals and/or for capital
appreciation.

Investment properties are initially measured at cost, including any directly
attributable expenditure. Subsequent to initial recognition, investment
properties are measured at their fair value. Gains or losses arising from
changes in the fair value of investment properties are included in profit or

loss for the period in which they arise.

An investment property is derecognised upon disposal or when the investment
property is permanently withdrawn from use and no future economic benefits
are expected from its disposals. Any gain or loss arising on derecognition of
the property (calculated as the difference between the net disposal proceeds
and the carrying amount of the asset) is included in profit or loss in the
period in which the property is derecognised.

Property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment including leasehold land and buildings held
for use in the production or supply of goods, or for administrative purposes
are stated in the consolidated statement of financial position at cost or
deemed cost less subsequent accumulated depreciation and accumulated

impairment losses, if any.

Depreciation is recognised so as to write off the cost of assets less their
residual values over their estimated useful lives, using the straight-line
method. The estimated useful lives, residual values and depreciation method
are reviewed at the end of each reporting period, with the effect of any
changes in estimate accounted for on a prospective basis.

An item of property, plant and equipment is derecognised upon disposal or
when no future economic benefits are expected to arise from the continued
use of the asset. Any gain or loss arising on the disposal or retirement of an
item of property, plant and equipment is determined as the difference between
the sales proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset and is recognised in
profit or loss.
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3.  Significant Accounting Policies ( Continued)

Impairment losses on tangible assets

At the end of the reporting period, the Group reviews the carrying amounts
of its tangible assets to determine whether there is any indication that those
assets have suffered an impairment loss. If any such indication exists, the
recoverable amount of the asset is estimated in order to determine the
extent of the impairment loss, if any. When it is not possible to estimate
the recoverable amount of an individual asset, the Group estimates the
recoverable amount of the cash-generating unit to which the asset belongs.
Where a reasonable and consistent basis of allocation can be identified,
corporate assets are also allocated to individual cash-generating units, or
otherwise they are allocated to the smallest group of cash-generating units for
which a reasonable and consistent allocation basis can be identified.

Recoverable amount is the higher of fair value less costs to sell and value in
use. In assessing value in use, the estimated future cash flows are discounted
to their present value using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects current
market assessments of the time value of money and the risks specific to the
asset for which the estimates of future cash flows have not been adjusted.

If the recoverable amount of an asset is estimated to be less than its carrying
amount, the carrying amount of the asset is reduced to its recoverable
amount. An impairment loss is recognised immediately in profit or loss.

Where an impairment loss subsequently reverses, the carrying amount of the
asset is increased to the revised estimate of its recoverable amount, but so
that the increased carrying amount does not exceed the carrying amount that
would have been determined had no impairment loss been recognised for the
asset in prior years. A reversal of an impairment loss is recognised as income
immediately in profit or loss.

Leasing

Leases are classified as finance leases whenever the terms of the lease transfer
substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership to the lessee. All other
leases are classified as operating leases.

The Group as lessor

Rental income from operating leases is recognised in profit or loss on a
straight-line basis over the term of the relevant lease.
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3.  Significant Accounting Policies ( Continued)

Leasing ( Continued)

The Group as lessee

Operating lease payments are recognised as an expense on a straight-line basis
over the lease term. Contingent rentals arising under operating leases are
recognised as an expense in the period in which they are incurred.

In the event that lease incentives are received to enter into operating leases,
such incentives are recognised as a liability. The aggregate benefit of
incentives is recognised as a reduction of rental expense on a straight-line
basis.

Leasehold land and buildings

When a lease includes both land and building elements, the Group assesses
the classification of each element as a finance or an operating lease separately
based on the assessment as to whether substantially all the risks and rewards
incidental to ownership of each element have been transferred to the Group,
unless it is clear that both elements are operating leases in which case the
entire lease is classified as an operating lease. Specifically, the minimum lease
payments (including any lump-sum upfront payments) are allocated between
the land and the building elements in proportion to the relative fair values of
the leasehold interests in the land element and building element of the lease at
the inception of the lease.

To the extent the allocation of the lease payments can be made reliably,
interest in leasehold land that is accounted for as an operating lease is
presented as “prepaid lease payments” in the consolidated statement of
financial position and is amortised over the lease term on a straight-line basis.
When the lease payments cannot be allocated reliably between the land and
building elements, the entire lease is generally classified as a finance lease and
accounted for as property, plant and equipment.
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3.  Significant Accounting Policies ( Continued)

Inventories

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and net realisable value. Cost of
inventories are determined on a first-in, first-out method. Net realisable value
represents the estimated selling price for inventories less all estimated costs of
completion and costs necessary to make the sale.

Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs directly attributable to the acquisition, construction or
production of qualifying assets, which are assets that necessarily take a
substantial period of time to get ready for their intended use or sale, are
added to the cost of those assets until such time as the assets are substantially
ready for the intended use or sale.

All other borrowing costs are recognised in profit or loss in the period in
which they are incurred.

Financial instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are recognised when a group entity
becomes a party to the contractual provisions of the instrument.

Financial assets and financial liabilities are initially measured at fair value.
Transaction costs that are directly attributable to the acquisition or issue of
financial assets and financial liabilities are added to or deducted from the fair
value of the financial assets or financial liabilities, as appropriate, on initial
recognition.

Financial assets

The Group’s financial assets are classified as loans and receivables. The
classification depends on the nature and purpose of the financial assets and is
determined at the time of initial recognition.

Effective interest method

The effective interest method is a method of calculating the amortised cost
of a debt instrument and of allocating interest income over the relevant
period. The effective interest rate is the rate that exactly discounts estimated
future cash receipts (including all fees and points paid or received that form
an integral part of the effective interest rate, transaction costs and other
premiums or discounts) through the expected life of the debt instrument, or,
where appropriate, a shorter period, to the net carrying amount on initial
recognition.

Interest income is recognised on an effective interest basis for debt

instruments.
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3.  Significant Accounting Policies ( Continued)

Financial instruments ( Continued)

Financial assets ( Continued)
Loans and receivables

Loans and receivables are non-derivative financial assets with fixed or
determinable payments that are not quoted in an active market. Subsequent
to initial recognition, loans and receivables (including trade and other
receivables, rental and utility deposits paid, pledged bank deposits and
bank balances, deposits and cash) are measured at amortised cost using the
effective interest method, less any impairment (see accounting policy on
impairment of financial assets below).

Impairment of financial assets

Financial assets are assessed for indicators of impairment at the end of the
reporting period. Financial assets are considered to be impaired when there is
objective evidence that, as a result of one or more events that occurred after
the initial recognition of the financial assets, the estimated future cash flows
of the financial assets have been affected.

Objective evidence of impairment could include:
. significant financial difficulty of the issuer or counterparty; or

. breach of contract, such as default or delinquency in interest and
principal payments; or

. it becoming probable that the borrower will enter bankruptcy or
financial re-organisation.

For certain categories of financial asset, such as trade receivables, assets
that are assessed not to be impaired individually are, in addition, assessed
for impairment on a collective basis. Objective evidence of impairment
for a portfolio of receivables could include the Group’s past experience of
collecting payments, an increase in the number of delayed payments in the
portfolio past the average credit period, observable changes in national or
local economic conditions that correlate with default on receivables.

For financial assets carried at amortised cost, the amount of the impairment
loss recognised is the difference between the asset’s carrying amount and the
present value of the estimated future cash flows discounted at the financial
asset’s original effective interest rate.
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3.  Significant Accounting Policies ( Continued)

Financial instruments ( Continued)

Financial assets ( Continued)
Impairment of financial assets ( Continued)

The carrying amount of the financial asset is reduced by the impairment loss
directly for all financial assets with the exception of trade receivables, where
the carrying amount is reduced through the use of an allowance account.
Changes in the carrying amount of the allowance account are recognised
in profit or loss. When a trade receivable is considered uncollectable, it is
written off against the allowance account. Subsequent recoveries of amounts
previously written off are credited to profit or loss.

For financial assets measured at amortised cost, if, in a subsequent period,
the amount of impairment loss decreases and the decrease can be related
objectively to an event occurring after the impairment loss was recognised,
the previously recognised impairment loss is reversed through profit or loss
to the extent that the carrying amount of the asset at the date the impairment
is reversed does not exceed what the amortised cost would have been had the
impairment not been recognised.

Financial liabilities and equity instruments

Debt and equity instruments issued by a group entity are classified as either
financial liabilities or as equity in accordance with the substance of the
contractual arrangements and the definitions of a financial liability and an
equity instrument.

Equity instruments

An equity instrument is any contract that evidences a residual interest in the
assets of the Group after deducting all of its liabilities. Equity instruments
issued by the Group are recognised at the proceeds received, net of direct
issue costs.

Financial liabilities

Financial liabilities including trade and other payables, rental deposits
received and secured bank borrowings are subsequently measured at
amortised cost, using the effective interest method.

Effective interest method

The effective interest method is a method of calculating the amortised cost
of a financial liability and of allocating interest expense over the relevant
period. The effective interest rate is the rate that exactly discounts estimated
future cash payments (including all fees and points paid or received that
form an integral part of effective interest rate, transaction costs and other
premiums or discounts) through the expected life of the financial liability,
or, where appropriate, a shorter period, to the net carrying amount on initial
recognition. Interest expense is recognised on an effective interest basis.
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3.  Significant Accounting Policies ( Continued)

Financial instruments ( Continued)

Derecognition

The Group derecognises a financial asset only when the contractual rights
to the cash flows from the asset expire, or when it transfers the financial
asset and substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership of the asset to
another entity.

On derecognition of a financial asset in its entirety, the difference between
the asset’s carrying amount and the sum of the consideration received and
receivable and cumulative gain or loss that had been recognised in other
comprehensive income and accumulated in equity is recognised in profit or
loss.

The Group derecognises financial liabilities when, and only when, the
Group’s obligations are discharged, cancelled or have expired. The difference
between the carrying amount of the financial liability derecognised and the
consideration paid and payable is recognised in profit or loss.

Foreign currencies

In preparing the financial statements of each individual group entity,
transactions in currencies other than the functional currency of that entity
(foreign currencies) are recorded at the rates of exchanges prevailing on the
dates of the transactions. At the end of the reporting period, monetary items
denominated in foreign currencies are retranslated at the rates prevailing at
that date. Non-monetary items that are measured in terms of historical cost
in a foreign currency are not retranslated.

Exchange differences on monetary items are recognised in profit or loss in
the period in which they arise except for exchange differences on monetary
items receivable from or payable to a foreign operation for which settlement
is neither planned nor likely to occur (therefore forming part of the net
investment in the foreign operation), which are recognised initially in other
comprehensive income and reclassified from equity to profit or loss on
repayment of the monetary items.
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3.  Significant Accounting Policies ( Continued)

Foreign currencies ( Continued)

For the purposes of presenting the consolidated financial statements, the
assets and liabilities of the Group’s foreign operations are translated into the
presentation currency of the Group (i.e. Hong Kong dollar) using exchange
rates prevailing at the end of each reporting period. Income and expenses
items are translated at the average exchange rates for the year, unless
exchange rates fluctuate significantly during the period, in which case, the
exchange rates prevailing at the dates of transactions are used. Exchange
differences arising, if any, are recognised in other comprehensive income and
accumulated in equity under the heading of translation reserve.

Taxation

Income tax expense represents the sum of the tax currently payable and
deferred tax.

The tax currently payable is based on taxable profit for the year. Taxable
profit differs from profit before tax as reported in the consolidated statement
of profit or loss and other comprehensive income because of income or
expense that are taxable or deductible in other years and items that are never
taxable or deductible. The Group’s liability for current tax is calculated using
tax rates that have been enacted or substantively enacted by the end of the
reporting period.

Deferred tax is recognised on temporary differences between the carrying
amounts of assets and liabilities in the consolidated financial statements
and the corresponding tax bases used in the computation of taxable profit.
Deferred tax liabilities are generally recognised for all taxable temporary
differences. Deferred tax assets are generally recognised for all deductible
temporary differences to the extent that it is probable that taxable profits
will be available against which those deductible temporary differences can
be utilised. Such assets and liabilities are not recognised if the temporary
difference arises from the initial recognition of assets and liabilities in a
transaction that affects neither the taxable profit nor the accounting profit.

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for taxable temporary differences
associated with investments in subsidiaries except where the Group is able to
control the reversal of the temporary difference and it is probable that the
temporary difference will not reverse in the foreseeable future. Deferred tax
assets arising from deductible temporary differences associated with such
investments are only recognised to the extent that it is probable that there
will be sufficient taxable profits against which to utilise the benefits of the
temporary differences and they are expected to reverse in the foreseeable
future.
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3.  Significant Accounting Policies ( Continued)

Taxation ( Continued)

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at the end of the
reporting period and reduced to the extent that it is no longer probable that
sufficient taxable profits will be available to allow all or part of the asset to
be recovered.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax rates that are
expected to apply in the period in which the liability is settled or the asset
is realised, based on tax rates (and tax laws) that have been enacted or
substantively enacted by the end of the reporting period.

The measurement of deferred tax liabilities and assets reflects the tax
consequences that would follow from the manner in which the Group expects,
at the end of the reporting period, to recover or settle the carrying amount of
its assets and liabilities.

For the purposes of measuring deferred tax for investment properties that are
measured using the fair value model, the carrying amounts of such properties
are presumed to be recovered entirely through sale, unless the presumption
is rebutted. The presumption is rebutted when the investment property is
depreciable and is held within a business model whose objective is to consume
substantially all of the economic benefits embodied in the investment
property over time, rather than through sale. If the presumption is rebutted,
deferred tax for such investment properties are measured in accordance with
the above general principles set out in HKAS 12 (i.e. based on the expected
manner as to how the properties will be recovered).

Current and deferred tax is recognised in profit or loss, except when it relates
to items that are recognised in other comprehensive income or directly in
equity, in which case, the current and deferred tax are also recognised in
other comprehensive income or directly in equity, respectively.

Retirement benefits costs

Payments to the defined contribution retirement benefit plans, including
state-managed retirement benefit schemes and the Mandatory Provident
Fund Scheme, are recognised as an expense when employees have rendered
service entitling them to the contributions.
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3.  Significant Accounting Policies ( Continued)

Equity-settled share-based payment transactions

Share options granted to employees of the group entities

Equity-settled share-based payments are measured at the fair value of the
equity instruments at the grant date. Details regarding the determination of

the fair value of equity-settled share-based transactions are set out in note 26.

The fair value determined at the grant date of the equity-settled share-based
payments is expensed on a straight-line basis over the vesting period, with a
corresponding increase in equity (share option reserve).

At the end of each reporting period, the Group revises its estimates of the
number of equity instruments expected to vest. The impact of the revision of
the original estimates during the vesting period, if any, is recognised in profit
or loss such that the cumulative expense reflects the revised estimate, with a
corresponding adjustment to the share option reserve.

When share options are exercised, the amount previously recognised in share
option reserve will be transferred to share premium. When the share options
are forfeited after the vesting period or are still not exercised at the expiry
date, the amount previously recognised in the share option reserve will be
transferred to retained profits.

4. Critical Accounting Judgements and Key Sources of
Estimation Uncertainty

In the application of the Group’s accounting policies, which are described
in note 3, the directors of the Company are required to make judgements,
estimates and assumptions about the carrying amounts of assets and
liabilities that are not readily apparent from other sources. The estimates and
associated assumptions are based on historical experience and other factors
that are considered to be relevant. Actual results may differ from these
estimates.

The estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an ongoing basis.
Revisions to accounting estimates are recognised in the period in which the
estimate is revised if the revision affects only that period, or in the period of
the revision and future periods if the revision affects both current and future

periods.
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4. Critical Accounting Judgements and Key Sources of
Estimation Uncertainty ( Continued)

Critical judgements in applying accounting policies

The following are the critical judgements, apart from those involving
estimations (see below), that the directors have made in the process of
applying the Group’s accounting policies and that have the most significant
effect on the amounts recognised in the consolidated financial statements.

Deferred taxation on investment properties

For the purposes of measuring deferred tax liabilities arising from
investment properties that are measured using the fair value model, the
directors of the Company have reviewed the Group’s investment property
portfolios and concluded that the Group’s investment properties are not
held under a business model whose objective is to consume substantially
all of the economic benefits embodied in the investment properties over
time. Therefore, in measuring the Group’s deferred taxation on investment
properties, the directors have determined that the presumption that the
carrying amounts of investment properties measured using the fair value
model are recovered entirely through sale is not rebutted. As a result, the
Group has not recognised any deferred taxes on changes in fair value of
investment properties as the Group is not subject to any income taxes on
disposal of its investment properties.

Key sources of estimation uncertainty

The following are the key assumptions concerning the future, and other key
sources of estimation uncertainty at the end of the reporting period, that have
a significant risk of causing a material adjustment to the carrying amounts of
assets and liabilities within the next financial year.

Deferred tax assets

As at 31st March, 2016, no deferred tax asset has been recognised in
relation to unused tax losses (2015: HK$3,159,000) and a deferred tax asset
of HK$6,773,000 (2015: HK$6,572,000) in relation to unrealised profit on
inventories have been recognised in the Group’s consolidated statement
of financial position. No deferred tax has been recognised in respect of
unused tax losses of HK$98,648,000 (2015: HK$97,854,000) due to the
unpredictability of future assessable profit streams. The realisability of the
deferred tax assets mainly depends on whether sufficient future assessable
profits or taxable temporary differences will be available in the future. In
cases where the actual future assessable profits generated are less or more
than expected, a material reversal or additional recognition of deferred tax
assets may arise, which would be recognised in the consolidated statement of
profit or loss and other comprehensive income in future.
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4. Critical Accounting Judgements and Key Sources of
Estimation Uncertainty ( Continued)

Key sources of estimation uncertainty ( Continued)

Impairment on property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment are carried at cost less accumulated
depreciation and accumulated impairment losses, if any. These carrying
amounts are reviewed for impairment whenever events or changes in
circumstances indicate that the carrying amounts may not be recoverable.
The review comprises a comparison of the carrying amount and recoverable
amount of the property, plant and equipment. Where the actual future
cash flows or fair value less costs to sell are less or more than expected, or
unfavourable changes in facts and circumstances which result in downward
revision of the estimated future cash flows for the purpose of determining
the value in use, impairment loss may arise. As at 31st March, 2016, the
carrying amount of property, plant and equipment is HK$235,359,000 (2015:
HK$148,692,000).

Allowance for inventories

Management of the Group reviews the inventories listing at the end of
the reporting period, and makes allowance for obsolete and slow-moving
inventory items identified based on management’s estimation and experience.
As at 31st March, 2016, the carrying amount of inventories (net of allowances
amounted to HK$10,700,000 (2015: HK$14,584,000)) is HK$487,192,000
(2015: HK$449,580,000). Management estimates the net realisable value for
inventories based primarily on the latest selling prices and current market
conditions. If the conditions of inventories are deteriorated, or the market
conditions worsen beyond management’s estimations, additional allowances
may be required.

Fair value measurements and valuation processes

Some of the Group’s assets and liabilities are measured at fair value for
financial reporting purposes. Management of the Group is responsible for
determination of the appropriateness of the valuation techniques and inputs
for fair value measurements.

In estimating the fair value of an asset or a liability, the Group uses market-
observable data to the extent it is available. Where Level 1 inputs are not
available, the Group engages third party qualified valuers to perform the
valuation. The management works closely with the qualified external valuers
to establish the appropriate valuation techniques and inputs to the model on
a regular basis, or when needs arise, and will report the significant results and
findings to the board of directors of the Company.

The Group uses valuation techniques that include inputs that are not based
on observable market data to estimate the fair value of certain types of assets.
Note 13 provides detailed information about the valuation techniques, inputs
and key assumptions used in the determination of the fair value of the assets.
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Segment Information

Operating segments

Information reported to the executive directors of the Company,
being the chief operating decision maker, for the purposes of resource
allocation and assessment of segment performance focuses on types
of goods delivered. No operating segment has been aggregated in
determining at the reporting segments of the Group as identified by
the chief operating decision maker.

The Group’s reportable and operating segments under HKFRS 8 are
Cosmetics and Fashion, of which principal activities are as follows:

feHa & — s$HELS Cosmetics —  Sale of cosmetics
B — WERHERERRFER Fashion —  Manufacture and sale of ladies fashion
PSR ER SEGMENT REVENUE AND RESULTS
UTFARBEREESFITAE The following is an analysis of the Group’s revenue and results by
B2 REBED - reportable and operating segments.
BE_T—RF For the year ended 31st March, 2016
=B=+—Hit=EE
e B SEERE 8 =&
Cosmetics Fashion Segment Total  Eliminations  Consolidated
TiER TER THET TET TET
HKS’ 000 HKS’000 HKS$’ 000 HK$’ 000 HK$’ 000
EXE TURNOVER
HIMEE External sales 1,722,866 503,597 2,226,463 = 2,226,463
PEEZHE Inter-segment sales - 200 200 (200) =
1,722,866 503,797 2,226,663 (200) 2,226,463
DEMZIHET  Inter-segment sales
BRTHRE are charged at
KETE - prevailing market rates.
PHERF(EE) SEGMENT PROFIT (LOSS) 94,019 (8,850) 85,169 = 85,169
BREMEDNTFE  Increase in fair value of
ELA investment properties 154
HAA « 1128 Other income, gains
REE and losses 440
hRITHER Central administration costs (5,173)
MERE Finance costs (3,779)
B A5 A2 1 Profit before tax

76,811
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PERNRREREE)
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3] TURNOVER
HiMEE External sales
PERZHE Inter-segment sales
DEMZIHETY  Inter-segment sales
BRTHRE are charged at
KETE - prevailing market rates.
FERF SEGMENT PROFIT
BREMENFE  Increase in fair value of
ELA investment properties
HWA ~ iz Other income, gains
REH and losses
RRITHEHR Central administration costs
MERK Finance costs

BRI RTRF

Profit before tax

HEZR—AF=A=+—HLEE

Segment Information ( Continued)

Operating segments ( Continued)

SEGMENT REVENUE AND RESULTS ( Continued)

For the year ended 31st March, 2015

e £33 DR il fRa
Cosmetics Fashion Segment Total  Eliminations Consolidated
TiER FTERT TR &R TiER
HKS$’ 000 HKS$’000 HK$’000 HK$’ 000 HK$’ 000
1,448,848 548,072 1,996,920 - 1,996,920
- 268 268 (268) -
1,448,848 548,340 1,997,188 (268) 1,996,920
110,427 17,213 127,640 - 127,640
560

594

(5,015)

(2,281)

121,498
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Segment Information (Continued)

Operating segments ( Continued)

SEGMENT REVENUE AND RESULTS ( Continued)

The accounting policies of the operating segments are the same as
the Group’s accounting policies described in note 3. Segment profit
represents the profit before tax earned by each segment without
allocation of increase in fair value of investment properties, certain
other income, gains and losses, central administration costs and
finance costs. This is the measure reported to the executive directors
for the purposes of resource allocation and performance assessment.

No analysis of segment assets and segment liabilities is presented
as the executive directors do not review such information for the
purposes of resource allocation and performance assessment.

OTHER SEGMENT INFORMATION
Amounts included in the measure of segment profit or regularly
reviewed by the chief operating decision maker:

fethm £ PERE NS e
Cosmetics Fashion  Segment Total Corporate  Consolidated
TAT TAT TET TAT TAT
HK$’000 HKS$’000 HKS$’000 HKS$’000 HKS$’000
“EB-RNE 2016
FE(EHRRE) Allowance for (reversal
i of allowance) inventories 448 (4,332) (3,884) = (3,884)
EX BERZRE Depreciation of property,
ZhE plant and equipment 24,162 14,567 38,729 2,527 41,256
FEAHEEHIEZ#ME  Amortisation of prepaid
lease payments - 256 256 - 256
HEER - BE Loss on disposal of property,
REkfEzE5H plant and equipment 521 794 1,315 = 1,315
7 NET Capital expenditure 118,931 11,980 130,911 179 131,090
e £ R AF) fra
Cosmetics Fashion ~ Segment Total Corporate  Consolidated
TER TER TER TER TER
HKS$’000 HKS$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’ 000
“E-h%F 2015
TEEf Allowance for inventories 400 8,927 9,327 = 9,327
EE MERGRE Depreciation of property,
ZIE plant and equipment 19,912 17,855 37,767 2,499 40,266
TANHEHIEZEE  Amortisation of prepaid
lease payments - 264 264 - 264
HEEE BE Loss (gain) on disposal of
Rzl property, plant and
BE(E) equipment 448 (70) 378 - 378
EAM® Capital expenditure 25,441 14,865 40,306 = 40,306
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5.  Segment Information ( Continued)

(b)  Geographical information

The Group’s operations are principally located in Hong Kong and

Macau, Taiwan, Singapore and other regions of the PRC. Information

about the Group’s revenue from external customers is presented based

on the geographical locations of operations.

2016 2015

TET FHEx

HKS$’ 000 HKS$’ 000

Hong Kong and Macau 2,112,982 1,856,834
Taiwan 37,416 48,533
Singapore 33,178 42,262
Other regions of the PRC 42,887 49,291
2,226,463 1,996,920

No revenue from a customer of the Group contributed over 10% of the

total turnover of the Group of the corresponding years.

Information about the Group’s non-current assets (excluding deferred

tax assets and rental deposits paid) is presented based on geographical

locations of the assets.

2016 2015

TET FHER

HKS$’000 HKS$’ 000

Hong Kong and Macau 201,756 166,676
Taiwan 415 751
Singapore 536 1,423
Other regions of the PRC 46,457 52,373
249,164 221,223
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6. Finance Costs

2016 2015
FET TET
HKS$’ 000 HKS$’ 000
Interest on bank borrowings 3,779 2,281
7. Income Tax Expense
2016 2015
FET TET
HKS$’ 000 HKS$’ 000
The charge comprises:
Hong Kong Profits Tax
Current year 11,572 17,352
Overprovision in prior years 5) (6)
11,567 17,346
Income tax in other jurisdictions
Current year 4,840 4,410
Overprovision in prior years (570) (848)
4,270 3,562
Deferred tax (note 16)
Current year 2,041 (1,851)
17,878 19,057

Hong Kong Profits Tax is calculated at 16.5% of the estimated assessable
profit for both years.

Taxation arising in other jurisdictions is calculated at the rates prevailing in
the relevant jurisdictions. The corporate tax rate in Taiwan was 17% for both
years.

Under Decree Law No0.58/99/M, a Macau company incorporated under that
Law (called “58/99/M company”) is exempted from Macau complementary
tax (Macau income tax) as long as the 58/99/M company does not sell its
products to a Macau resident company.

Veeko Wank0 colourrmixey MorRIMOR O
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Te Income Tax Expense ( Continued)

i

Certain subsidiaries operating in Macau are subject to Macau complementary

tax of 12%, subject to finalisation of the tax liability with the relevant

tax authority. During the current year, an overprovision of income tax of
HKS$611,000 (2015: HK$1,289,000) was reversed and credited to profit or

loss.

Under the Law of the PRC on Enterprise Income Tax (“EIT”) (the “EIT
Law”) and Implementation Regulations of the EIT Law, the tax rate of PRC

subsidiaries is 25%.

The tax charge for the year can be reconciled to the profit before tax per the

consolidated statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income as

follows:

Profit before tax

Tax at Hong Kong Profits Tax rate of 16.5%
Effect of different tax rates applicable
to operations in other jurisdictions
Tax effect of expenses not deductible
for tax purposes
Tax effect of income not taxable
for tax purposes
Utilisation of tax losses previously
not recognised
Tax effect of tax losses not recognised
Tax effect of tax exemption and concession
granted to operations in other jurisdictions
Allowance of tax losses previously recognised
Overprovision in prior years

Income tax expense for the year

2016 2015
FHET FET
HKS$’ 000 HK$000
76,811 121,498
12,674 20,047
(864) (1,015)
2,697 1,991
(1,053) (499)
(724) (209)
2,663 3,072
- (3,476)
3,060 -
(575) (854)
17,878 19,057




Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements &4 B B &N

For the year ended 31st March, 2016

8. ZAFERF

AEERF Sk
(Bt A)FHIBIA:

BTwM A
(BEESME):
FrEN K ELAth i@ )

LUBg 15 % BTt 2 (B A
R IRTEF FT &I X

TR & FIR 8
ZEET &

—RZBURTE

—IFRLBURTE
RRBXZFERAR(MZ)

EX HMEERRBZFE

|ITF BULA

HEEE - B Kk
ZBRFER (BT AE MU A
W%t K Erig )

FER (IR ) BIE
(BT AHEMUA ~ 5 K B548)
KEREDEZHEWA
(BEAERZZH)

Wi BREEIZEERABEEE
{5 E3,884,0008T( —E—7A
F  FE%#159,327,000 7T ) ©

BE-E—RNF=RB=1+—HILEE
8. Profit for the Year

Profit for the year has been arrived
at after charging (crediting):

Employee benefits expenses
(including directors’ emoluments):
Salaries and other benefits
Share-based payments
Retirement benefits scheme contributions

Amortisation of prepaid lease payments
Auditors’ remuneration
— audit services
— non-audit services
Cost of inventories recognised
as expenses (Note)
Depreciation of property,
plant and equipment
Bank interest income
Loss on disposal of property,
plant and equipment, net
(included in other income,
gains and losses)
Net exchange (gain) loss (included in
other income, gains and losses)
Rental income from investment properties,
with negligible outgoings

ang
HH-

2016 2015
FET FET
HKS’ 000 HKS$’ 000
296,520 283,192
726 859
15,300 14,023
312,546 298,074
256 264

2,126 2,109
569 777
1,300,266 1,112,543
41,256 40,266
(279) (499)
1,315 378
(40) 2,609
(1,003) (95)

Note: Cost of inventories recognised as expenses included reversal of allowance
for inventories of HK$3,884,000 (2015: allowance for inventories of

HK$9,327,000).
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i

Directors’ and the Chief Executive Officer’s Emoluments

The emoluments paid or payable to each of the six (2015: five) directors were

FAZBMEMT as follows:
ZE-RE 2016
Executive director Yc#
BiTEEME
REHZLT
(frE#e#)"
Ms. Lam Independent non-executive director ¥
BEYELE  Yuk Sum By TES )
Mr. Cheng (Chief EHHEBLT MNAXLE BEELE HGREEL
Chung Man,  Executive Dr. Fok Kam Mr. Lam Mr. Yang ~ Mr. Yeung &t
Johnny Officer)”  Chu, John Man Tin' Wei Tak®  Wing Kay Total
TER FTER FTER FTER FTER FTER FET
HK$’ 000 HK$’ 000 HK$’ 000 HK$’ 000 HKS$’ 000 HKS$’ 000 HK$’000
fag Fees = = 130 21 109 150 410
Hiti & Other emoluments
HeR2 Salaries and allowances 1,560 660 = = = = 2,220
BIATERIET B3R Retirement benefits scheme
contributions 18 18 - - - - 36
D EFCE Total emoluments 1,578 678 130 21 109 150 2,666
_Z-1% 2015
Executive director Ve
HiEEma
KEHzT
(1T H#EH )"
Ms. Lam Independent non-executive director Vo« ?/
EENLE  Yuk Sum BT E S
Mr. Cheng (Chief EHHEL BEELE BAELE
Chung Man,  Executive Dr. Fok Kam  Mr. Yang  Mr. Yeung =
Johnny Officer)”  Chu, John Wei Tak™  Wing Kay Total
TERT TERT TERT TERT TERT TET
HKS$’000 HKS$’000 HKS$’000 HKS$’000 HKS$’000 HK$’000
ik Fees = = 130 130 150 410
Hinfl& Other emoluments
FERZE Salaries and allowances 1,560 660 - - - 2,220
BIRTEF G Al Retirement benefits scheme
contributions 18 18 - - - 36
M Total emoluments 1,578 678 130 130 150 2,666

MRIB—RE_B-H $BEE
EEBEIRARARBEILIENTE
ERMXMELEEZEREF QT
BYIFHITES -

MEBRLX TR BARATITEME
H LA BEERBRIHEEE
HRATAT B RRS AT IR L2 BR 75 -

k%

On 2nd February, 2016, Mr. Yang Wei Tak resigned as an independent
non-executive director of the Company and Mr. Lam Man Tin was
appointed as an independent non-executive director of the Company.

Ms. Lam Yuk Sum is also the chief executive officer of the Company and
her emoluments disclosed above included those services rendered by her as
the chief executive officer.
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9.

Notes:

(a)

(b)

(©)

Directors’ and the Chief Executive Officer’s Emoluments
( Continued)

The executive directors’ emoluments shown above were mainly for their
services in connection with the management of the affairs of the Company
and the Group.

The independent non-executive directors’ emoluments shown above were
mainly for their services as directors of the Company.

During the years ended 31st March, 2016 and 2015, no emoluments were
paid by the Group to the directors and the chief executive officer as an
inducement to join or upon joining the Group or as compensation for loss
of office. In addition, neither the chief executive officer nor any of the
directors waived any emoluments during the years ended 31st March, 2016
and 2015.
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10. EEEE 10. Employees’ Emoluments

MRAFER  AfusESH ALTEIE -  During the year, the five highest paid individuals included one (2015: one)
(ZB—A%F:—)AARES GFAHE  director of the Company, whose emoluments are set out in note 9 above. The
B2 p0EEE A ESCKIEE9 - BATFIUfZI( =  emoluments of the remaining four (2015: four) highest paid individuals are as
E—AF M) mSHALTHOMEWT follows:

2016 2015
FET FET
HKS$’000 HKS$’ 000
Fie - URGBERZEN Salaries, share-based payments

K E fhigF and other benefits 4,023 4,198
EARIFIERE 2 SR FRIE Performance related incentive payments 479 1,390
R IKTEFET B R Retirement benefits scheme contributions 72 60
4,574 5,648
2016 2015
EE&R BE&HE
No. of No. of
employees employees

BEMENFTINEE - Their remuneration was within the

following bands:

NB3E1,000,0007& 7T Not exceeding HK$1,000,000 1 1
1,000,001 7T 21,500,000 JT HK$1,000,001 to HK$1,500,000 3 2
2,000,001 522,500,000 7T HK$2,000,001 to HK$2,500,000 - 1
BE_Z-—ARER-ZT—AFZ=A=+—  During the years ended 31st March, 2016 and 2015, no emoluments were paid

ALEHFE  AEELEABEALXTM by the Group to these individuals as an inducement to join or upon joining
O FREMAAXAEBZFEREEBH  the Group or as compensation for loss of office.
{g o
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11. Dividends

Dividends recognised as distribution
during the year:

2016 interim dividend of HK0.8 cent
(2015: 2015 interim dividend of
HKO0.7 cent) per share
2015 final dividend of HK 1.3 cents
(2015: 2014 final dividend of
HKO0.9 cent) per share

2016 2015
FET FET
HKS$’ 000 HKS’ 000
19,111 16,701
31,055 20,342
50,166 37,043

In respect of the 2015 final dividend, cash dividends were offered and were
accepted by the majority of shareholders as follows:

2016 2015 2015 2014
T HA RHA FREHA K ER
Interim Final Interim Final
TET TET FHET TFAET
HK$’ 000 HKS$’000 HKS$’000 HK$’ 000

Dividends:
Cash 19,111 31,055 16,701 3,711
Scrip alternative - - - 16,631
19,111 31,055 16,701 20,342

The 2016 final dividend of HKO.5 cent per share totalling HK$11,944,000
in cash has been proposed by the directors and is subject to approval by the
shareholders in the forthcoming annual general meeting.
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12. Earnings Per Share

The calculation of the basic and diluted earnings per share attributable to the
owners of the Company is based on the profit for the year of HK$58,933,000
(2015: HK$102,441,000) and on the weighted average number of ordinary
shares of the Company set out below.

2016 2015
Number of shares
Weighted average number of ordinary
shares for the purpose of basic
earnings per share 2,388,884,410  2,346,954,827
Effect of dilutive potential ordinary shares:
Share options 11,019,278 6,090,994
Weighted average number of ordinary
shares for the purpose of diluted
earnings per share 2,399,903,688 2,353,045,821
13. Investment Properties
FHET
HK$’ 000
FAIR VALUE
At 1st April, 2014 1,840
Increase in fair value recognised in profit or loss 560
At 31st March, 2015 2,400
Additions 4,096
Increase in fair value recognised in profit or loss 154
At 31st March, 2016 6,650

The investment properties of the Group represents the parking spaces in an
industrial building. All of the Group’s property’s interests held to earn rental
and/or for capital appreciation purposes are measured using the fair value
model and are classified and accounted for as investment properties.
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13. Investment Properties ( Continued)

The fair value of the Group’s investment properties at 31st March, 2016
and 2015 have been arrived at on the basis of valuations carried out on that
date by Savills Valuation and Professional Services Limited, an independent
qualified professional valuer not connected with the Group and possesses
appropriate qualifications and experience in the valuation of properties in
the relevant locations. Savills Valuation and Professional Services Limited
is a member of the Hong Kong Institute of Surveyors. The valuation was
determined based on the direct comparison approach that reflects recent
comparable prices for similar properties, mainly adjusted for differences in
the nature, location and condition of the investment properties under review.

There has been no change to the valuation technique during the year.

In estimating the fair value of the properties, the highest and best use of the

properties is their current use.

Direct comparison approach

One of the key inputs used in valuing the investment properties, was the
market price per parking space, using direct comparison approach and taking
into account of the differences in the nature, location and condition, which
ranged from HK$980,000 to HK$1,500,000 per parking space. The increase
in the market price per parking space would result in an increase in the fair
value of the investment properties, and vice versa.

The Group’s investment properties are categorised within Level 3 of the fair
value hierarchy as at 31st March, 2016.

There were no transfers into or out of Level 3 during the year.

At the end of both reporting periods, all of the Group’s investment properties
have been pledged to secure banking facilities granted to the Group.
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14. EX - BER#RE

HEZR—AF=A=+—HLEE

Property, Plant and Equipment

HELit g
kT  BFER HEREE GBRRRE BHARH bl Bt

Leasehold

land and Leasehold Plant and Furniture and Office Motor

buildings improvements ~ machinery fixtures  equipment vehicles Total

TER TER TR TER TER THET THET

HK$'000  HK$000  HK$'000  HKS$000  HK$'000  HK$000  HKS 000
mAE COST
RZE-NENA—-H At Ist April, 2014 111,978 136,089 36,229 49,405 19,358 5,736 358,795
ERHAR Exchange adjustments = (1,530) 15 (166) (174) (34 (1,889)
RE Additions = 20,671 1,539 11,182 3,669 3,245 40,306
HE /i Disposals/write-off = (13,677) (1,603) (3,414) (1,448) (2,288) (22,430)
WZZE-R&=A=+—H At 3lst March, 2015 111,978 141,553 36,180 57,007 21,405 6,659 374,782
ERAE Exchange adjustments (1,900) (1,543) (1,446) (74) 92) (58) (5,113)
RE Additions 94,188 18,838 53 14,291 3,633 87 131,090
HE /iR Disposals/write-off = (23,449) (1,601) (4,637) (1,808) (102) (31,597)
RZB—AEZA=+—H  At3Ist March, 2016 204,266 135,399 33,186 66,587 23,138 6,586 469,162
e DEPRECIATION
RZE-NENA—H At st April, 2014 23,496 113,480 28,757 25,923 13,008 4,446 209,110
ERAE Exchange adjustments 5) (1,401) 8 (134) (159) (30) (1,721)
ERER Provided for the year 3,746 19,407 3,993 8,574 3,759 787 40,266
HE /HERRS TS Eliminated on disposals/write-off = (13,516) (1,596) (2,762) (1,403) (2,288) (21,565)
RZZ—R&=A=+—H  At3lst March, 2015 27,037 117,970 31,162 31,601 15,205 2,915 226,090
ERRAZ Exchange adjustments (383) (1,471) (1,289) (69) (82) (59) (3,353)
EREH Provided for the year 7,044 16,294 2,408 10,263 4208 1,019 41,256
HE /HiRREH Eliminated on disposals/write-off - (22,853) (1,601) (3,949) (1,685) (102) (30,190)
RZB—AE=A=+—H At 3lst March, 2016 33,898 109,940 30,680 37,846 17,666 3,773 233,803
EEE CARRYING VALUES
RZB—AEZA=+—H  At3Ist March, 2016 170,368 25,459 2,506 28,741 5472 2,813 235,359
RZB—-RE=A=+—B  At3lst March, 2015 84,741 23,583 5,018 25,406 6,200 3,744 148,692

FEBZHETHREFUNEER
PR -

The Group’s leasehold land and buildings are located in Hong Kong and the
PRC.
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14 EX -BEREREE)

LI EEE - BB KRR B REREE
B ERERL T ERERTE
HELHRIETF

Leasehold land and buildings
HERFRE

Leasehold improvements

i 7= i v 25

Plant and machinery

BRRESE

Furniture and fixtures
BN A

Office equipment

HE

Motor vehicles

AEE D IEFIREEFE134,791,000& 7T
(ZE—FAF 46,365,000 )2 HE L
R AEF - AL R —AREITME

15. FR{FHEEKRIE
FEBEZENHERERRE

BERIMEE L

FERM S Z 247 -
REBEE
FREBEE
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14. Property, Plant and Equipment ( Continued)

The above items of property, plant and equipment, less their residual values,
are depreciated on a straight-line basis at the following rates per annum:

B EFH
Over the terms of leases

20%E IR E FR(LUBEE BE)

20% or over the terms of the leases, whichever is shorter

25%

20%

33'5%

20%

The Group has pledged leasehold land and buildings with a total net book
value of HK$134,791,000 (2015: HK$46,365,000) to secure general banking

facilities granted to the Group.

15. Prepaid Lease Payments

The Group’s prepaid lease payments comprise:

Leasehold land outside Hong Kong

Analysed for reporting purpose as:
Current asset
Non-current asset

2016 2015
FERT THET
HKS$’ 000 HKS$’000
7,407 7,984
252 262
7,155 7,722
7,407 7,984
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16. EIEMIA 16. Deferred Taxation

MEIIREMBERARME » EFEELEM  For the purpose of presentation in the consolidated statement of financial
HEERBECDIERSE - TXAMBIE®RE  position, certain deferred tax assets and liabilities have been offset. The

ME ZIEEMRIBFEER T following is the analysis of the deferred tax balances for financial reporting
purposes:

2016 2015

FET TET

HKS$’ 000 HK$’000

EERRIBEE Deferred tax assets 7,257 9,893

EERIAEE Deferred tax liabilities (3,935) (4,431)

3,322 5,462

TXBAFERBEFEMRBZEZEEEL  The following are the major deferred tax assets (liabilities) recognised and

REEE(BR)RBAEE movements thereon during the current and prior years:
REREMK
ZREESH RER
Temporary =13l
EfENE difference REFEE  Unrealised
Revaluation of from tax Tax profit on st
properties  depreciation losses inventories Total

TER TAR TAn TEn TER
HK$'000  HK$°000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HKS'000

RZ2-NENA—H At Ist April, 2014 (3,309) (1,141) 3,045 4,914 3,709
ERAE Exchange adjustments - (12) (36) _ (98)
RIBEPEA Credited to profit or loss 133 60 - 1,658 1,851
AZZ-RE=ZFB=+—H  At3lst March, 2015 (3,176) (1,093) 3,159 6,572 5,462
ERmE Exchange adjustments - - (99) _ (99)
RERFREAGIZ) Credited (charged) to profit or loss 133 683 (3,060) 201 (2,041)

RZE—RE=F=1+—H At 31st March, 2016 (3,043) (408) - 6,773 3,302
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16. ELEMIA(#E)

RIBE—RE=ZA=+—H X&EE7A
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P S5 ] N gy | B R o 792
im) >k Ef B #R3 18 5 4898,648,0008 T ( — &
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16. Deferred Taxation (Continued)

At 31st March, 2016, the Group had unused tax losses of HK$98,648,000
(2015: HKS$116,439,000) available for offset against future assessable profits.
As at 31st March, 2015, a deferred tax asset has been recognised in respect of
HKS$18,585,000 of such losses.

At 31st March, 2016, no deferred tax asset has been recognised in respect of
the unused tax losses of HK$98,648,000 (2015: HK$97,854,000) due to the
unpredictability of future assessable profit streams. Included in unrecognised
tax losses are losses of HK$50,084,000 (2015: HK$42,138,000) that will expire
in 2016 to 2026 (2015: 2015 to 2025), other losses may be carried forward
indefinitely.

Under the EIT Law of the PRC, withholding tax is imposed on dividends
declared in respect of profits earned by PRC subsidiaries from 1Ist January,
2008 onwards. Deferred tax has not been provided for in the consolidated
financial statements in respect of temporary differences attributable to
undistributed and accumulated profits of the PRC subsidiaries amounting to
HK$63,594,000 (2015: HK$63,648,000) as the Group is able to control the
timing of the reversal of the temporary differences and it is probable that the
temporary differences will not reverse in the foreseeable future.

17. Inventories

2016 2015

TAET FET

HK$’ 000 HK$’ 000

Raw materials 19,667 20,731
Work in progress 24,834 26,801
Finished goods 442,691 402,048
487,192 449,580
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18. Trade and Other Receivables

2016 2015

FET FHET

HKS$’000 HK$’ 000

Trade receivables 18,304 25,416
Other receivables 22,790 31,026
41,094 56,442

The Group allows 30 to 60 days credit period for receivables from sales

counters and a credit period of 60 to 120 days to its wholesale customers.

The following is an aged analysis of trade receivables presented based on the

invoice date at the end of the reporting period:

2016 2015

TET FET

HKS$’ 000 HKS$’ 000

Within 30 days 11,833 17,227
31 - 60 days 1,429 1,482
61 — 90 days 932 275
Over 90 days 4,110 6,432
18,304 25,416
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18. FEUWE 5 IR R HAth
FEUWIFRIA (75 )

AEBRIERETAHFHRE SR G55
EEFZAFEERH  LFEEBEEER
ZIEEWRR  WETEBFZIEEEHE - &
EEgAEERRRIFAREZEFIEM
FHHE  TTEHERETERZEEH
B o MRABEHR  90%(ZE—AF:
93% ) Z FEUNEE 5 718 it 3 F 38 HA = Ib M8
WR{E - AAREERAEWE SFIERE
BHCRRET - MSEH AL EREETR
8% o

AEBZEWE SIS ENARS
HiEH 2 B FRIE AR E {8 1,881,000 7T
(ZE—FAF 11,868,000/ 7T ) > AEEA
WA LLEHR B ERE - AEBUBAEE
FEERIFEEMIRIRE - KD HFRULR
BEMRE#HEE Rt UERGESBER
HEth2EUARAEHERERIS -

RARSHRRBZAHET 22 aEE
REEZENEZHIRRESTAT

61 -90H
91— 120H

BE-T-AG=B=+—HILEE
18. Trade and Other Receivables (Continued)

Before accepting any new wholesale customers, the Group assesses the
potential customer’s credit quality by investigating their historical credit
record and defines credit limits by customer. Credit sales are made to
customers with a satisfactory and trustworthy credit history. Credit limits
attributed to customers are reviewed regularly. At the end of the reporting
period, 90% (2015: 93%) of the trade receivables are neither past due
nor impaired. In the opinion of the directors of the Company, the trade
receivables are of good credit quality and those debtors did not have any
default payment history.

Included in the Group’s trade receivables balances are debtors with an
aggregate carrying amount of HK$1,881,000 (2015: HK$1,868,000) which
are past due at the reporting date for which the Group has not provided for
impairment loss. The Group does not hold any collateral over these balances.
Majority of these receivables have been subsequently settled and accordingly,
no impairment loss was made in the consolidated statement of profit or loss
and other comprehensive income.

Ageing of trade receivables presented based on the invoice date at the end of
the reporting period which are past due but not impaired are set out as below:

2016 2015

FERT TET

HK$’000 HK$’ 000

61 — 90 days 567 16
91 — 120 days 1,314 1,852
1,881 1,868

81
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18. FEWEZFHRIARH
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18. Trade and Other Receivables (Continued)

The Group’s trade and other receivables that are denominated in currencies
other than the functional currency of the relevant group entities are set out as

below:
UARMEHE LUETEHE
Denominated in
Renminbi (“RMB”) HK$
FET TFHET
HKS$’000 HKS$’000
At 31st March, 2016 779 2,007
At 31st March, 2015 1,327 1,026

19. Pledged Bank Deposits

The amounts represent deposits pledged to a bank to secure general banking
facilities granted to the Group. The deposits have been pledged to secure
short-term bank borrowings and are therefore classified as current assets. The
deposits carry fixed interest at rates ranging from 2.1% to 3% (2015: 0.55% to
2.35%) per annum.

The amounts are denominated in RMB.
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20. RITHE  FTRRRE

AEBZ RITHRER RIFAIRRITIRITER
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20. Bank Balances, Deposits and Cash

The Group’s bank balances and deposits carry interest at prevailing bank
deposits rates ranging from 0.001% to 3.65% (2015: 0.001% to 2.3%) per
annum and have an original maturity of three months or less.

The Group’s bank balances and deposits that are denominated in currencies
other than the functional currency of the relevant group entities are set out as
below:

LA R#EEHE LUETTEHE MErEHE
Denominated in

United

States

dollar

RMB HKS$ (“USD”)

FET TF#E FET

HKS$’000 HK$°000 HK$’000

At 31st March, 2016 2,742 6,427 88
At 31st March, 2015 2,358

4,798 89
21. Trade and Other Payables

At 31st March, 2016, included in the Group’s trade and other payables were
trade payables of HK$23,507,000 (2015: HK$29,464,000). Details of the aged
analysis of trade payables presented based on the invoice date at the end of
the reporting period are as follows:

2016 2015

FERT TET

HKS$’ 000 HKS$’ 000

Within 30 days 16,114 23,222
31 - 60 days 2,968 1,433
61 — 90 days 2,005 2,431
Over 90 days 2,420 2,378
23,507 29,464

Veeko Wank0 colourrmixey MorRIMOR O
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21. Trade and Other Payables (Continued)

An analysis of the Group’s other payables is set out below:

Accrued expenses
Other payables
Other taxes payables

2016 2015
FET TET
HKS$’ 000 HK$’ 000
41,000 37,750
8,148 9,420
1,600 1,551
50,748 48,721

The Group’s trade and other payables denominated in currencies other than
the functional currency of the relevant group entities are set out below:

At 31st March, 2016
At 31st March, 2015

22. Secured Bank Borrowings

Bank loans
Import loans

LUETEE LABRTEHE
Denominated in

Euro

HKS$ (“EUR”)

FET FET

HKS$’ 000 HKS$’ 000

1,585 72

693 4,563

2016 2015

FET TFHET

HK$’ 000 HKS$’000

135,305 49,696

25,751 37,936

161,056 87,632
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22. Secured Bank Borrowings (Continued)

The secured bank borrowings are repayable as follows:

2016 2015
FHET THET
HK$’000 HK$’ 000
Carrying amounts repayable*:
Within one year 118,970 75,299
In the second year 8,365 11,395
In the third to fifth years inclusive 20,149 938
More than five years 13,572 -
161,056 87,632
Analysis of carrying amounts:
Amounts due within one year shown
under current liabilities 118,970 75,299
Carrying amount of bank loans that are
not repayable within one year from
the end of the reporting period but
contain a repayment on demand
clause (shown under current liabilities) 42,086 7,188
161,056 82,487
Amounts shown under non-current
liabilities - 5,145
161,056 87,632

= The amounts due are based on scheduled repayment dates set out in the loan
agreements.

The Group’s borrowings are floating-rate borrowings which carry interest
at effective interest rates (which are also equal to contracted interest rates)
ranging from 1.5% to 4% (2015: 1.22% to 6%) per annum.

The Group’s bank borrowings that are denominated in currencies other than
the functional currency of the relevant group entities are set out as below:

KUEmetE LIBRTEtE
Denominated in
USD EUR
FET FET
HKS$’000 HKS$’ 000
At 31st March, 2016 10,956 3,874

At 31st March, 2015 36,709 605

The bank borrowings are secured by certain assets of the Group (see note 25).
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23. Share Capital

Eaik® e
Number of BE
ordinary shares Value
F#ET
HK$’ 000

Ordinary shares at HK$0.01 each

Authorised:
At 1st April, 2014, 31st March,
2015 and 31st March, 2016
10,000,000,000 100,000

Issued and fully paid:

At Ist April, 2014 2,315,366,372 23,153
Issue of new shares in lieu of cash

dividend (Note i) 65,218,038 652
Exercise of share options (Note ii) 8,300,000 83

At 31st March, 2015 and
31st March, 2016 2,388,884,410 23,888

Notes:

(i) On 23rd October, 2014, the Company issued and allotted a total of
65,218,038 ordinary shares of HK$0.01 each at HK$0.255 per share, in lieu
of cash for the 2014 final dividend.

(i1)) During the year ended 31st March, 2015, 1,300,000 and 7,000,000 share
options were exercised at HK$0.186 and HKS$0.225 per share, respectively,
resulting in issue of a total of 8,300,000 ordinary shares of HK$0.01 each in
the Company.

The shares issued during the year rank pari passu with the then existing
shares in all respects.
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24. Operating Leases

The Group as lessee

During the year, the Group made rental payments for buildings under
operating leases as follows:

2016 2015

THET FHET

HK$’000 HK$’ 000

Minimum lease payments 392,068 335,560
Contingent rental payments 5,461 9,010
397,529 344,570

At the end of the reporting period, the Group had commitments for future
minimum lease payments under non-cancellable operating leases which fall
due as follows:

2016 2015

FET FET

HKS$’000 HK$’000

Within one year 371,181 310,572
In the second to fifth years inclusive 308,753 291,004
679,934 601,576

In addition to these commitments, the Group may pay additional rental
expenses in respect of certain premises which are dependent upon the level of
sales achieved by particular stores.

Operating lease payments represent rental payable by the Group for certain
of its retail stores and office properties. Leases are negotiated for an average
term of three years. Certain lease contracts are with contingent rental
arrangements.
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24. REWEE(E) 24. Operating Leases (Continued)
AEEERLBEA The Group as lessor

RAFEABRN ZMEMRESUW AR  Property rental income earned during the year was HK$1,003,000 (2015:
1,003,000 T (ZZ — A F : 95,000  HKS$95,000). All of the properties held have committed tenants for less than
TU) o T BEZMENEEEAFEHEELH one year.

—FZMF -

MRAREHR  AEBBBEFEIIEH At the end of the reporting period, the Group had contracted with tenants for

U ARREEEERIE : the following future minimum lease payments:
2016 2015
THET FET
HKS$’ 000 HK$’ 000
—FRN Within one year 32 34
25. EERHR 25. Pledge of Assets

RAMEHR  AEBIBHFETFIRITLL At the end of the reporting period, the following assets were pledged by the
BERFAEEN—MRITHMERIENE  Group to certain banks to secure general banking facilities granted to the

EMT Group:
2016 2015
FTERT FET
HKS$’ 000 HKS$’ 000
BREME Investment properties 6,650 2,400
HELHREF Leasehold land and buildings 134,791 46,365
ERIRERITIF X Pledged bank deposits 6,235 6,500

147,676 55,265
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26. Share Option Schemes

Pursuant to an ordinary resolution passed at the annual general meeting of
the Company on 17th September, 2003, a share option scheme (the “2003
Scheme”) was adopted by the Company for the purpose of providing eligible
participants with the opportunity to acquire proprietary interests in the
Company and to encourage participants to work towards enhancing the
value of the Company and its shares for the benefit of the Company and its
shareholders as a whole. Further pursuant to an ordinary resolution passed
at the annual general meeting of the Company on 30th August, 2013, another
share option scheme (the “2013 Scheme”) was adopted by the Company, as
the expiration of the 2003 Scheme on 16th September, 2013. Upon expiration
of the 2003 Scheme, no share options can be granted under such scheme
and holders of all share options granted under it prior to its expiration shall
be entitled to exercise the outstanding share options pursuant to the terms
of it until expiry of such options. The eligible participants and the terms
of the 2013 Scheme is the same as the 2003 Scheme. All directors, full-time
employees and any other persons who, in the sole discretion of the board of
directors of the Company, have contributed or will contribute to the Group
are eligible to participate in both the 2003 Scheme and the 2013 Scheme.

At 31st March, 2016, the number of shares in respect of which options had
been granted and remained outstanding under the 2013 Scheme in aggregate
were 42,520,000 (31st March, 2015: 45,000,000), representing 1.8% (31st
March, 2015: 1.9%) of the shares of the Company in issue at that date.

Shares which may be issued upon exercise of all options to be granted under
the 2013 Scheme or any other share option scheme adopted by the Company
must not in aggregate exceed 10% of the shares of the Company in issue on
the date of adoption.

The Company may renew this 10% limit with shareholders’ approval
provided that each such renewal may not exceed 10% of the shares in the
Company in issue as at the date of the shareholders’ approval.
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26. REBRHEETEI(4F)
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26. Share Option Schemes (Continued)

The total number of shares of the Company which may be issued upon
exercise of all outstanding options granted and yet to be exercised under the
2013 Scheme or any other share option scheme adopted by the Company
must not exceed 30% of the shares in issue from time to time.

Unless approved by shareholders of the Company, the total number of
shares of the Company issued and to be issued upon the exercise of the
options granted to each participant (including both exercised and unexercised
options) under the 2013 Scheme or any other share option scheme adopted by
the Company in any 12-month period must not exceed 1% of the shares of the

Company in issue.

The period within which the options must be exercised will be specified by the
Company at the time of grant. This period must expire no later than 10 years
from the date of grant of the options. At the time of grant of the options,
the Company may specify a minimum period for which an option must be
held before it can be exercised. The offer of a grant of share options may be
accepted within 21 days from the date on which the letter containing the offer
is delivered to that participant and the amount payable on acceptance of an
option is HKS$1.

The subscription price for the shares of the Company to be issued upon
exercise of the options shall be no less than the highest of (i) the closing price
of the shares of the Company as stated in the daily quotations sheets issued
by the Stock Exchange on the date of offer; (ii) the average closing price of
the shares of the Company as stated in the daily quotations sheets issued by
the Stock Exchange for the five business days immediately preceding the date
of offer; and (iii) the nominal value of a share of the Company on the date of
offer. The subscription price will be established by the board of directors of
the Company at the time the option is offered to the participants.

No options may be granted under the 2013 Scheme after the date of the tenth

anniversary of the adoption of the respective share option scheme.

No options were granted to the directors of the Company during both years
or outstanding at 31st March, 2015 and 2016 under the 2013 Scheme.



TEEEAEERESMFRE-Z—=F
FEIRH ZEREEREEERE
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A

RiEH
Date of grant

“E-ZEiE
2013 Scheme

—2-=%+BtH
(B—#)

Tth October, 2013
(Batch 1)

“E-ZH5+AtA
(B=#)

7th October, 2013
(Batch 2)

—2-MFMA-+4H
(BRH)

25th April, 2014
(Batch 6)

—2-MFMA-+4H
(BtHt)

25th April, 2014
(Batch 7)

RERATHRE
Exercisable at
the end of the year

MEFER
Weighted average
exercise price

Veeko WADK0 colourmixes MoORIMOR O

RBEEZE-—AR"F=ZRA=+—HLEFE

fTEaREH
Vesting period

“Z-=%+PBtHE
—E2-RE+BAH
Tth October, 2013
to 6th October, 2016

—Z-=%+PBtHE
“E2-\%+BARH
Tth October, 2013
to 6th October, 2018

“Z2-MENA-+HAE
“2-t#MA=+MNA
25th April, 2014
to 24th April, 2017

“E-NENAZ+LHE
“2-AFNAZ+AH
25th April, 2014
to 24th April, 2019

BE-B-—AFZA=+—HILEE
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26. FBRRHERTEI(/E)

Share Option Schemes (Continued)

hcd i

Exercisable period

—Z-"E+RtHE
—Z-\%t+HXH
Tth October, 2016
to 6th October, 2018

“Z-\%+BtHE
“EZEETARA
Tth October, 2018
to 6th October, 2020

Z2-tENAZ+AAZE
“2-nENAZ-1AH
25th April, 2017
to 24th April, 2019

Z2-hnENAZ+LAZE
“2--FNAZ1AH
25th April, 2019
to 24th April, 2021

During the year ended 31st March, 2016:

BRTEE
Exercise
price

per share

0.225%7
HKS$0.225

0.2058 7
HKS$0.225

0.300 7
HKS$0.300

0.300 7T
HK$0.300

The following tables disclose details of options granted under the 2013
Scheme held by employees of the Group and movements in such holdings.

R-F-1E REER RIE-RE
mA—H #%/%% =BR=t-AH
ok Cancelled/ EARITE
Balance lapsed Outstanding

at during at

1.4.2015 the year 31.3.2016
18,040,000 (800,000) 17,240,000
18,040,000 (800,000 17,240,000
4,460,000 (440,000) 4,020,000
4,460,000 (440,000) 4,020,000
45,000,000 (2,480,000 42,520,000
0.240 0.239
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26. HEBExiEETEI(E)

REBEE—Z—
A

b=k
Date of grant
“ERZEHE

2003 Scheme
ZEEtE ANA

4th June, 2007

“B-CERHE

2013 Scheme

“Z2-SEtRtH
(E-#)

Tth October, 2013
(Batch 1)

“2-ZEtAtH
(BZ4#)

Tth October, 2013
(Batch 2)

“E2-ZEtAtH
(HE=#)

Tth October, 2013
(Batch 3)

“E-CEt+RtH
(M)

Tth October, 2013
(Batch 4)

“2-=31AtH
(EaH)

Tth October, 2013
(Batch $)

AE=R=+—HILEE

fiaREY
Vesting period

ZEEtEAHIE‘
“5-"%/A=H
4th June, 2007
to 3rd June, 2012

ZE—:E+HtEE
E-RE1+A/H

7Ih Oclober, 2013

to 6th October, 2016
“2--EtRtHE

“E5-\F+RAH
7th October, 2013

to 6th October, 2018
“2-CEtRtHE

“2-ME+-B=1H
7th October, 2013

to 30th November, 2014
“E-CEtRLHE

“2-15t-PB=1H
7th October, 2013

to 30th November, 2015
“E-ZEtBLHE

“2-"EN\B=1-H
7th October, 2013

to 31st August, 2016

ZE-MENR-+AEA ZE-MEMA-+4hHZ

(%74)
25th April, 2014
(Batch 6)

“E-tLEMAZ+NA
25th April, 2014
to 24th April, 2017

“2-MENAZ+hH Z2-MEMA-+HAZ

(Eth)
25th April, 2014
(Batch 7)

ARERE
Exercisable at
the end of the year

METISTER
Weighted average
eXeICise price

“E-NEMAZ+RA
25th April, 2014
to 24th April, 2019

26. Share Option Schemes ( Continued)

2 I

Exercisable period

ZE-"EAMAE
“E-MERBZH
4th June, 2012
to 3rd June, 2014

ZE-"E+RtHE
“E5-\F+AAH
Tth October, 2016
to 6th October, 2018

“E-\§tRtHE

“E2RE+ARH
7th October, 2018

to 6th October, 2020
“5-ME+-p-A%

“E-1F+-A=1H
Ist December, 2014

to 30th November, 2015
“2-15+-p-HE

“5-"¥nAZ1+ZH
Ist December, 2015

to 22nd September, 2016
“E5-"Enf-HE

Z5-"E¥nA>1+ZH
Ist September, 2016

to 22nd September, 2016
“E-tfMA-+aAE

“E-N%NAZ+MA
25th April, 2017

to 24th April, 2019
$-ENAZEAE

“8”-%NAZ+MA
25th April, 2019

to 24th April, 2021

BRTER

Exercise
price
per share

018657
HK$0.186

022587

HK$0.225

022587
HK$0.225

022587
HKS0.225

020547
HK$0.225

0.225%7
HK$0.225

0.300E7
HK$0.300

03007
HK$0.300

During the year ended 31st March, 2015:

i

Ro%-nE REER R-%-E§
DA-B  REER BS/KR  REER =A={-H
L RE Cancelled! it HATTE
Balance Granted lapsed Exercised  Outstanding

at during during during at
1.4.2014 the year the year the year 31.3.2015
2,100,000 - (800,000) (1,300,000 -
18,240,000 - (200,000) - 18,040,000
18,240,000 - (200,000) - 18,040,000
7,000,000 - - (7,000,000) -
7,000,000 - (7,000,000) - -
8,000,000 - (8,000,000) - -
- 5,600,000 (1,140,000) - 4,460,000

- 5,600,000 (1,140,000) - 4,460,000
60,580,000 11,200,000 (18,480,000)  (8,300,000) 45,000,000
0.4 0.240
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26. Share Option Schemes ( Continued)

No share options exercised during the year ended 31st March, 2016 (2015: the
weighted average share price on the date of exercise is HK$0.323).

During the year ended 31st March, 2015, options were granted on 25th April,
2014 under the 2013 Scheme. The estimated fair values of the options granted
on that date were:

HKS$
Date of grant BT
25th April, 2014 (Batch 6) 0.079
25th April, 2014 (Batch 7) 0.088

In respect of share options granted on 25th April, 2014, the fair values were
calculated using the Black-Scholes option pricing model (the “Black-Scholes
Model”). The inputs into the model were as follows:

Bz ABBNT :

Batch 6 Batch 7

ENH Etit
Frig i RE R & B Number of options granted 5,600,000 5,600,000
il Share price HKS$0.3003%& 7T HKS$0.3005& 7T
1TfEE Exercise price HK$0.3007& 7T HK$0.3007& 7T
FEHA R & Expected volatility 50.88% 54.76%
FEHATE AR Expected life 5 yearstE 7 yearsfE
2 Jo B A1) 2K Risk-free rate 1.42% 1.75%
FEHARR BBl Expected dividend yield 6.31% 6.31%

FREPEIBRANRRENRBEAZLEE
REAEIEZ BT RBEMEE

AEFREREE_E—RE=Z/A=+—
HIEFERAARRH ZEREERZME
X A726,000 T ( ZF—HAF 859,000
BIT) ©

TAA R — SFENTER LB P AR A

2 ATARIE - RS EMARE 2 A TRIERS

RAZEURBRPRRAEE 2 BER

5o BRREESE T ERBR TRE
pEmHE -

Expected volatility was determined by using the historical volatility of the
Company’s share price over past 5 to 7 years up to valuation date.

The Group recognised the total expense of HK$726,000 for the year ended
31st March, 2016 (2015: HK$859,000) in relation to share options granted by
the Company.

The Black-Scholes Model has been used to estimate the fair value of the
options. The variables and assumptions used in computing the fair value of
the share options are based on the directors’ best estimate. The value of an
option varies with different variables of certain subjective assumptions.
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27. Retirement Benefits Schemes

The Group operates the Mandatory Provident Fund (“MPF”) scheme for
qualifying employees of the Company and its subsidiaries in Hong Kong.
The assets of the MPF scheme are held separately from those of the Group
in funds under the control of trustees. The Group contributes at the lower
of HK$1,500 or 5% of relevant payroll costs to the MPF scheme, which
contribution is matched by employees.

The Company’s subsidiary operating in Singapore is required to participate
in the Central Provident Fund (“CPF”) scheme. The retirement benefit
costs charged to the consolidated statement of profit or loss and other
comprehensive income represent contributions to the CPF scheme by the
Group at rates specified in the rules of the CPF scheme.

The Company’s subsidiaries operating in the PRC are also required to make
contributions to state-managed retirement benefit schemes in the PRC. The
subsidiaries are required to contribute a specific percentage of the monthly
basic salaries of the employees to the relevant schemes to fund the benefits.
The only obligation of the Group with respect to these pension schemes is to
make the specified contributions.

The branch of the Company’s subsidiary operating in Taiwan adopted a
defined contribution scheme governed by the Labor Pension Act (“LPA”).
LPA prescribes that the pension contribution rate by an employer to an
employee’s individual pension account per month shall not be less than six
percent of each employee’s monthly salary or wage.

28. Related Party Disclosures
Compensation of key management personnel

The remuneration of directors and other members of key management during
the year was as follows:

2016 2015

FHET FHET

HKS$’ 000 HK$’000

Short-term benefits 5,170 5,113
Post-employment benefits 87 86
Share-based payments 120 121
5,377 5,320

The remuneration of directors and key executives is recommended to the
Board by the remuneration committee having regard to the performance of
individuals and market trends.



ERBEE
Bt /B A R R

REBEE

HAth FEULFRIR
Bt /B R R R 5K
|ITHARRE

RBRE
H At & £ 7108
R B AR 2 FRIA

RBEEFE

BXK e
BB
R ffaE)

EEECONE—AREAAZ+tH
R IR A AR B TS AR R
WAHTIALTREREE :

EY:4
BiEX

EE
HEHR

Veeko Wank0 colourmixes MoriMor O

Nl i Clslidaias! e il S b bR

For the year ended 31st March, 2016

29. ARABHERRT

HEZR—AF=A=+—HLEE

29. Statement of Financial Position of the Company

Non-current Assets
Interests in subsidiaries

Current Assets

Other receivables

Amounts due from subsidiaries
Bank balances and cash

Current Liabilities
Other payables
Amounts due to subsidiaries

Net Current Assets

Capital And Reserves
Share capital
Reserves (Note)

2016 2015
FERT TET
HK$’ 000 HK$’000
132,012 53,631
326 328
356,058 441,736
169 80
356,553 442,144
931 1,007
201,823 208,219
202,754 209,226
153,799 232,198
285,811 286,549
23,888 23,888
261,923 262,661
285,811 286,549

The Company’s statement of financial position was approved and authorised

for issue by the board of directors on 27th June, 2016 and are signed on its

behalf by:

Cheng Chung Man, Johnny
Chairman

Lam Yuk Sum
Director
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29. AATEBEIRREK(AZE) 29. Statement of Financial Position of the Company
( Continued )
st - Note:
TR R R
A BARE Share RTHRH
Share Contributed option Retained I
premium surplus reserve profits Total
FiEn FiEn TR FiER TR
HK$°000 HK$°000 HK$000 HK$°000 HK$000
RZE—NFNB—H At st April, 2014 187,012 53,135 760 2,640 243,547
AEERFREEEBA  Profit and total comprehensive
income for the year - - - 37,827 37,827
RRAEE Recognition of equity-settled
B BER 2B share-based payments - - 859 = 859
RATHERERREMRT RS  Issue of shares on exercise of
share options 2,057 - (323) - 1,734
B/ 2R Share options cancelled/lapsed - = (242) = )
RE-B& (M) Dividends — Cash (Note 11) = = = (20,412) (20412)
—LBRE ~ Serip alternative 15,979 - = (16,631) (652)
R=B-FEZB=+—H At 3lst March, 2015 205,048 53,135 1,054 3424 262,661
AEERFREEABA  Profit and total comprehensive
income for the year - - - 48,759 48,759
BRRAEEZ Recognition of equity-settled share-
L AER 2B based payments - S 726 = 726
B%H /2 B Share options cancelled/lapsed - - (57) - (57)
RE-R& (f211) Dividends — Cash (Note 11) - - - (50,166) (50,166)

MZB-AE=A=1—H  At31st March, 2016 205,048 33,135 1,723 2,017 261,923
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30, FEMEATIFIE

AKARMZE—RERZE—FAF=R
Z+—HHEEMBARMFIBEMNT :

MEARBE

Name of subsidiary

FRECMAERAR
Colourmix Cosmetics Company
Limited

Colourmix Cosmetics Retail
Company Limited

HEKEBIE T EEX S
BRAR(Mztc)

Meko Fashion (Zhuhai-Macau
Cross Boarder Industrial Zone,

Zhuhai) Company Limited (Note c)

SR ERESHFRERAR
(Htzte)

Shantou Huanan Digao Fashion
Company Limited (Note ¢)

WERR S REVERAR(Mite)

HEZR—AF=A=+—HLEE

30.

Place of
incorporation/
establishment

&4
Hong Kong

&4
Hong Kong

FE
PRC

e
PRC

i
PRC

EBTR
HMERE/
ARmER
Issued and

fully paid

share capital/
registered capital

1,000,000 7t

HK$1,000,000

100,000 7T
HK$100,000

13,000,000 7T
HK$13,000,000

20,000,000/ 7T
HK$20,000,000

28,350,0007 7T
HK$28,350,000

Particulars of Principal Subsidiaries

KRR
RBCET
BA /R

BAREELLH
Proportion of
nominal value of

issued share capital/

registered
capital held

by the Company
(Wiita)

(Note a)

2016 2015
100%  100%

100%  100%

100%  100%

100%  100%

100%  100%

Particulars of the principal subsidiaries of the Company as at 31st March,
2016 and 2015 were as follows:

IREH
Principal activities
(Biztb)

(Note b)

tHaEREERTE
Retailing of cosmetics
& skin care products

tHaEREERTE
Retailing of cosmetics
& skin care products

RREE
Manufacturing of
garments

Manufacturing of
garments

BREERA R
Retailing and wholesaling
of garments

Veeko Wank0 colourrmixey MorRIMOR O
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30. FEMBATES(#AZ) 30. Particulars of Principal Subsidiaries ( Continued)

NI
RHEERT
BA /G
ERTR BAREELH
HERA/ Proportion of
i AMELR nominal value of
[ovk:ubo Issued and issued share capital/
Place of fully paid registered
MEBASEHE incorporation/ share capital/ capital held TEEE
Name of subsidiary establishment registered capital by the Company Principal activities
(Wiita) (Wiztp)
(Note a) (Note b)
2016 2015
NFRESHEFRAR(Mitc) R 36,000,000 7T 100%  100% MKEE
Shantou Yungao Fashion PRC HK$36,000,000 Manufacturing of
Company Limited (Note ¢) garments
AEHEARAR B# 2,400,000 7 100%  100% RRETE
Veeko Fashion Company Hong Kong HK$2,400,000 Retailing of garments
Limited
Veeko Fashion Far East EBERZHEE 1E7 100%  100% ERERERKTE
Company Limited British Virgin USS1 Retailing of garments
Islands (“BVI”) in Taiwan
Veeko Fashion (Singapore) Pte Ltd.  $7/13% 1,000,000%f AN3% 7T 100%  100% MKREE
Singapore SGD1,000,000 Retailing of garments
Veeko Holdings Limited ZERLHB 618.56ETT 100%  100% REZR
BVI USS618.56 Investment holding
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30. EXMBABFIEE) 30.

AN
=]

B RRME

Particulars of Principal Subsidiaries ( Continued)

Y. NG
RECET
BA /G
EETR BAREELH
BERE,/ Proportion of
i/ EMER nominal value of
Pk 3Lt B Issued and issued share capital/
Place of fully paid registered
MELRAE incorporation/ share capital/ capital held FEER
Name of subsidiary establishment registered capital by the Company Principal activities
(Hizta) (HiztD)
(Note a) (Note b)
2016 2015
AeER(RMIRE P 100,000/RF# 100%  100% BKEE
BERE)EBRAR Macau MOP100,000 Trading of garments
Veeko Trading (Macao Commercial
Offshore) Limited
Wina Success Limited & 100 7T 100%  100% HEME
Hong Kong HKS$100 Property holding
BYAMARAR iy 100,000 2P 100%  100% R&ME
Ying Choi Macau Company Macau MOP100,000 Manufacturing of
Limited garments
BiaE - Notes:
a. AATR EHIEIEBVeeko Holdings  a. The Company directly holds the interest in Veeko Holdings Limited. All

Limited B4 » FXFRFTAE
SR LR ERES -

b BEXEIELB—MBEED
O AL EEBIOREM,
3T BRETT o

¢  AARNRERENERECE
2R o

S B A R 4 G 2 O £ T A
SRR RE RS -

ERIHEEBAREENERY BARE
LES BV BES 1PN E
WEELHBAT - EEBAIIHE K
BARZHEELHRBRTE -

other interests shown above are indirectly held by the Company.

b. The principal activities are carried out in place of incorporation/
establishment except as otherwise stated under principal activities above.

A The companies are registered in the form of wholly foreign owned
enterprises.

None of the subsidiaries had any debt securities outstanding at the end of the
year or at any time during the year.

The above table lists the subsidiaries of the Company which, in the opinion
of the directors, principally affected the results of the Group for the year or
formed a substantial portion of the assets or liabilities of the Group at the
end of the year. To give details of other subsidiaries would, in the opinion of
the directors, result in particulars of excessive length.
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32. &mT

32a. ST E3ER

SHEE

BEREWERIE

(BERRBELZEER)

SHEE

85 P A

32b. ARG EIEEIER
BUER

AEEZ BT ARERNESHERE

{FELENE « DTS RKERS « (EHEH

ﬁEfﬂ" © ERTTHERS RIS  ENE

MIERHMES IR CHEERER
ﬁ?ﬁ?%ﬂﬁ%ﬁ e T HEZF BN 1ER
MiEE ik EE - Bt F 2/ T AHRZ ERE
BiEmBERE(EEMERRFRERE)
EERBRREBE SRR o TR ELL
FERBRZHE BHEEEERERLE
R - DR R A KRB R B ITEE
VFE X

ang
HH-

BE-T—AE=A=+—BLEE
31. Capital Risk Management

The Group manages its capital to ensure that entities in the Group will
be able to continue as a going concern while maximising the return to
stakeholders through the optimisation of the debt and equity balance. The
Group’s overall strategy remains unchanged from prior years.

The capital structure of the Group consists of net debt, which includes
secured bank borrowings disclosed in note 22, net of cash and cash
equivalents and equity attributable to owners of the Company, comprising
issued share capital, reserves and retained profits.

The directors of the Company review the capital structure on a regular
basis. As part of this review, the directors consider the cost of capital and
the risks associated with each class of capital. Based on recommendations of
the directors, the Group will balance its overall capital structure through the
payment of dividends, new share issues as well as the issue of new debt or the
redemption of existing debt.

32. Financial Instruments

32a. Categories of financial instruments

2016 2015
TET FET
HKS$’ 000 HK$’ 000
Financial assets
Loans and receivables
(including cash and cash equivalents) 227,697 219,644
Financial liabilities
Amortised cost 192,728 126,528

32b. Financial risk management objectives and policies

The Group’s financial instruments include trade and other receivables, rental
and utility deposits paid, pledged bank deposits, bank balances, deposits
and cash, trade and other payables, rental deposits received and secured
bank borrowings. Details of the financial instruments are disclosed in the
respective notes. The risks associated with these financial instruments include
market risk (represented by currency risk and interest rate risk), credit
risk and liquidity risk. The policies on how to mitigate these risks are set
out below. Management manages and monitors these exposures to ensure
appropriate measures are implemented on a timely and effective manner.
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32.

32b.

i

T AE=A=+—HAILEE
Financial Instruments ( Continued)

Financial risk management objectives and
policies ( Continued)

Market risk

(i)

Currency risk

Several subsidiaries of the Company have foreign currency
sales, purchases and secured bank borrowings, which expose
the Group to foreign currency risk. In addition, group entities
are exposed to foreign currency risk attributable to intra-
group receivables and payables where the denomination of
the receivables and payables is in currencies other than the
functional currency of the relevant group entities. The Group
currently does not have a foreign currency hedging policy.
However, the management closely monitors foreign exchange
exposure and will consider hedging significant foreign currency
exposure should the need arise.

The Group’s currency risk is mainly attributable to the
exposure outstanding on bank balances and deposits,
receivables, payables, bank borrowings and intra-group
receivables and payables denominated in RMB, HKS, USD and
EUR. The carrying amounts at the end of the reporting period
are as follows:

BE BfE

Assets Liabilities
2016 2015 2016 2015
FET FET FERT TEx
HKS$’ 000 HKS$’ 000 HKS$’000 HKS$’ 000
9,756 10,185 - -
8,434 5,824 69,802 146,686
88 89 10,956 36,709
- - 3,946 5,168
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Impact on profit
for the year

HEZ

32.

32b.

i

Financial Instruments ( Continued)

Financial risk management objectives and
policies ( Continued)

Market risk (Continued)
(i) Currency risk (Continued)

Sensitivity analysis

The following table details the Group’s sensitivity to a 5%
(2015: 5%) increase and decrease in the functional currency
of each group entity against the relevant foreign currency.
5% (2015: 5%) represents management’s assessment of the
reasonably possible change in foreign exchange rates. The
sensitivity analysis includes the Group’s outstanding foreign
currency denominated monetary items, intra-group receivables
and payables where the denomination of the receivables and
payables is in currencies other than the functional currency
of the relevant group entities and adjusts their translation at
the year end for a 5% (2015: 5%) increase in foreign currency
rates. A (negative) positive number below indicates (decrease)
increase in post-tax profit for the year where the functional
currency of each group entity strengthens 5% (2015: 5%)
against the relevant foreign currency. For a 5% (2015: 5%)
weakening of functional currency of each group entity against
the relevant currency, there would be an equal and opposite
impact on the post-tax profit.

AEBEE EneEE E a2 Bezg
RMB impact HKS impact USD impact EUR impact

2016
TiEn
HKS' 000

(407)

2013 2016 2015 2016 2015 2016 2013
TEn TiEn TR TR TR TiEn TR
HKS'000  HES00  HKS'000  HKS'00  HKS'00  HKS'000  HKS'000

=N

(425) 1562 5,881 454 1,529 165 2
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32.

32b.

i

T AE=A=+—HAILEE
Financial Instruments ( Continued)

Financial risk management objectives and
policies ( Continued)

Market risk (Continued)

(ii)

Interest rate risk

The Group is exposed to fair value interest rate risk in relation
to fixed-rate pledged bank deposits (see note 19 for details of
the balances). The management monitors the fair value interest
rate risk exposure and considers it as insignificant.

The Group is also exposed to cash flow interest rate risk in
relation to variable-rate short-term bank deposits and bank
borrowings (see notes 20 and 22 for details of these balances).
It is the Group’s policy to keep its borrowings at floating rate
of interests so as to minimise the fair value interest rate risk.
The exposure to the interest rate risk for variable-rate bank
deposits is insignificant.

The Group’s exposures to interest rates on financial liabilities
are detailed in the liquidity risk management section of this
note. The Group’s cash flow interest rate risk is mainly
concentrated on the fluctuation of Hong Kong Interbank
Offered Rate (“HIBOR”) arising from the Group’s bank

borrowings.

The Group currently does not have any interest rate hedging
policy in relation to fair value and cash flow interest rate risks.
However, management monitors interest rate exposure on
ongoing basis and will consider hedging significant interest rate
risk should the need arise.
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32.

32b.

i

Financial Instruments ( Continued)

Financial risk management objectives and
policies ( Continued)

Market risk (Continued)
(i)

Interest rate risk (Continued)
Sensitivity analysis

The sensitivity analysis below has been determined based on
the exposure to interest rates for bank borrowings. The analysis
is prepared assuming the amount of liability outstanding at
the end of the reporting period was outstanding for the whole
year. A 50 (2015: 50) basis point increase or decrease represents
management’s assessment of the reasonably possible change in
interest rates.

If interest rates had been 50 (2015: 50) basis points higher/lower
and all other variables were held constant, the Group’s post-
tax profit for the year ended 31st March, 2016 would decrease/
increase by HK$672,000 (2015: HK$366,000).

Credit risk

As at 31st March, 2016, the Group’s maximum exposure to credit
risk which will cause a financial loss to the Group due to failure to
discharge an obligation by the counterparties is arising from the
carrying amount of the respective recognised financial assets as stated
in the consolidated statement of financial position.

In order to minimise the credit risk, the management of the Group has
delegated a team responsible for determination of credit limits, credit
approvals and other monitoring procedures to ensure that follow-
up action is taken to recover overdue debts. In addition, the Group
reviews the recoverable amount of each individual trade debt and
on a collective basis at the end of the reporting period to ensure that
adequate impairment losses are made for irrecoverable amounts. In
this regard, the directors of the Company consider that the Group’s
credit risk is significantly reduced.

The credit risk on liquid funds is limited because the counterparties
are banks with high credit ratings assigned by international credit-
rating agencies.

The Group has no significant concentration of credit risk, with
exposure spread over a number of counterparties and customers.
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32.

32b.

MigFigH%=
Weighted

interest rate

i

Financial Instruments ( Continued)

Financial risk management objectives and
policies ( Continued)

Liquidity risk

The Group relies on bank borrowings as a major source of liquidity.
Details of which are set out in note 22. As at 31st March, 2016, the
Group has available unutilised banking facilities of HK$103,048,000
(2015: HK$113,862,000).

In the management of the liquidity risk, the Group monitors and
maintains a level of cash and cash equivalents deemed adequate by the
management to finance the Group’s operations and mitigate the effects
of fluctuations in cash flows. The management monitors the utilisation
of bank borrowings and ensures compliance with loan covenants.

The following tables detail the Group’s contractual maturity for its
non-derivative financial liabilities. The tables have been drawn up
based on the undiscounted cash flows of financial liabilities based
on the earliest date on which the Group can be required to pay.
Specifically, bank borrowings containing a repayment on demand
clause are included in the earliest time band regardless of the
probability of the banks choosing to exercise their rights. The maturity
dates for other non-derivative financial liabilities are based on the
agreed repayment dates.

The tables include both interest and principal cash flows. To the
extent that interest flows are floating rate, the undiscounted amount is
derived from interest rate curve at the end of the reporting period.

RZE-RE
=B=+-H
ZEEE
Total Carrying

undiscounted amount

—EhF cash at
1-5 years flows 31.3.2016
TAL TAL TR
HKS$’000 HKS$’000 HK$’000

AARRE
REXY RERHE
SR—fER
Ondemand  —Z={AR
or less than 1-3
1 month months
5314 TAT TAT
% HKS’000 HKS’000

ZERE-F
3 months
to 1 year

TAL
HKS$’000

average

- 30,315

221 157,077

1,340
17

1,711

31,655
17

161,392

31,655
17

161,056

187,392

193,064

192,728
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32. &EMIB(A#E)

32b. MBRABREERER
EUR(#E)
HEEZ/E (&)
“E-1% 2015
FEeRas Non-derivative
financial liabilities
EfEZTERA Trade and other payables
FEFTFR
E”ﬂﬁﬁfﬁﬁ Rental deposits received
BHEMRTEE Secured bank borrowings
%R ~ variable rate

RENZERAS A AEEIREKRE
MEXZRITEEDIATRERS D
A—EAIZFEAR - RIE—RERT
T-—AE=RA=+—H %SRITEE
AETEREE S B &155,910,0005 7T &
72,373,000 7T © & BRI AL E Z B K
o BEETHERTETEERBHEEX
BREERR - EEHE1E  BRARITEENR
BERmEETZHEERBBmMRERE
KRB AF(ZE—AF =F)RE
E o BfF > AR LAERFRTEEZA
& RFSIE &7 %8155 162,402,00078
TT(ZEB—FAF 72,812,000 7T) °
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32. Financial Instruments (Continued)

HEZZ—

32b. Financial risk management objectives and
policies ( Continued)

Liquidity risk ( Continued)

RZE-1L%

FBRE =ZA=t+-H

BREKR RERE ZIREfE

MEFHFE  HR—ER Total Carrying

Weighted ~ Ondemand ~ —Z=fif ZfBE-% undiscounted amount

average or less than 1-3 3 months —ERE cash at

interest rate 1 month months to 1 year 1-5 years flows 31.3.2015

B FEL TEL TET FET TET TR

% HKS’000 HKS’000 HKS’000 HKS’000 HKS’000 HKS$’000

- 38,344 540 - - 38,884 38,884

- - 6 6 - 12 12

2.17 73,339 2,518 6,861 5,285 88,003 87,032

111,683 3,064 6,367 5,285 126,899 126,528

Bank borrowings with a repayment on demand clause are included in the “on
demand or less than 1 month” time band in the above maturity analysis. As
at 31st March, 2016 and 2015, the aggregate carrying amounts of these bank
borrowings amounted to HK$155,910,000 and HK$72,373,000, respectively.
Taking into account the Group’s financial position, the directors do not
believe that it is probable that the banks will exercise their discretionary
rights to demand immediate repayment. The directors believe that such bank
borrowings will be repaid within six years (2015: three years) after the end of
the reporting period in accordance with the scheduled repayment dates set
out in the loan agreements. At that time, the aggregate principal and interest
cash outflows in respect of secured bank borrowings as shown above will
amount to HK$162,402,000 (2015: HK$72,812,000).
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32. Financial Instruments (Continued)

32c. Fair value

The fair values of financial assets and financial liabilities are determined in
accordance with generally accepted pricing models based on discounted cash
flow analysis, with most significant inputs being the discount rate that reflects
the credit risk of counterparties.

The directors of the Company consider that the carrying amounts of financial
assets and financial liabilities recorded at amortised cost in the consolidated
financial statements approximate their fair values.

33. Capital Commitments

As at 31st March, 2016, there is no capital commitments contracted for
acquisition but not provided in the consolidated financial statements.

On 14th January, 2015, two wholly-owned subsidiaries of the Company
signed provisional sales and purchase agreements in respect of the acquisition
of a property and investment properties at a consideration of HK$86,680,000
and HK$3,920,000, respectively, from two independent third parties of
the Group (the “Acquisitions”). Deposits paid for acquisition of property,
plant and equipment, investment properties and other related direct costs
amounted to HK$59,892,000 and HK$2,517,000 were paid during the year
and recognised in the consolidated statement of financial position at the end
of the reporting period.

The Acquisitions were completed on 1st April, 2015 and capital commitments
contracted for acquisition but not provided in the consolidated financial
statements are as follows:

2015

TFEx

HK$’ 000

Property, plant and equipment 34,196
Investment properties 1,579
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E 5 RESULTS

BE=RA=+—HLEE
Year ended 31st March,
2012 2013 2014 2015 2016
FERT TERT TER FHEx FHET
HKS$’ 000 HK$’ 000 HK$’ 000 HK$’ 000 HKS$’ 000

—E 3] TURNOVER 1,279,537 1,408,624 1,619,240 1,996,920 2,226,463
PR AR T PROFIT BEFORE TAX 69,319 66,719 56,534 121,498 76,811
FERAZ INCOME TAX EXPENSE (8,402) (12,478) (10,774) (19,057) (17,878)
FERF PROFIT FOR THE YEAR 60,917 54,241 45,760 102,441 58,933
BEERER ASSETS AND LIABILITIES
®=A=+—8
At 31st March,
2012 2013 2014 2015 2016

THERT T#ET T#ET THET FTET
HK$’000  HKS$'000  HK$’000  HKS$'000  HKS$’ 000

EERE TOTAL ASSETS 735,839 781,560 839,830 929,857 994,136
=Rk TOTAL LIABILITIES (138,159)  (159,968)  (184,603)  (184,736)  (241,447)
BREES SHAREHOLDERS’ FUNDS 597,680 621,592 655,227 745,121 752,689
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